GSIL

GUJARAT STATE
INVESTMENTS
LIMITED

37" ANNUAL REPORT

2024-2025

egistere d Office: 06™ Floor, H.K. House, Opp. Bata Showroom, Ashram Road,

Ahmedabad-380 009

CIN. U64990G]J1988SGC010307 web: www.gujsil.in




GSIL
37™ Annual Report of

Gujarat State Investments Limited

(CIN U64990G]J1988SGC010307 )

Financial Year 2024-2025

Board of Directors

Dr. T. Natarajan, IAS [DIN 00396367] (w.e.f. 11.09.2024)
Dr. Ratankanvar H Gadhavicharan, TAS

[DIN 07943985]

Shri Bhadresh Mehta [DIN 02625115]

Smt. Neena Kumar, Member,

[DIN 10551695]

Ms. Arti Kanwar, IAS [DIN 03535973]

Cessation of Directors

Shri J. P. Gupta, IAS [DIN 01952821] (upto 11.09.2023)

Chief Financial Officer
Miss Tanaz S Bacha

Company Secretary

Chairman
Director

Independent Director
Woman Independent Director

Managing Director

Chairman

Shri Sandip Shah

Statutory Auditors Secretarial Auditors Internal Auditors
M/s J. T. Shah & Co. Vishal Mehta & Co. M/s R.K. Doshi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accounts, Company Secretary Chartered Accounts,
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

Bankers Debenture Trustees

State Bank of India IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

ICICI Bank Universal Insurance Building,

HDFC Bank Ground Floor, Sir P.M. Road,

Fort, Mumbai - 400001

Website: http://www.idbitrustee.com
Email id : compliance@idbitrustee.com



GSIL

INDEX
Sr. No | Particulars Page No.
1. AGM Notice along with Proxy Form 01-08
2 Directors’ Report 09-54
3 Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements 55-69
4 Standalone Financial Statements (Balance Sheet,| 70-71
P&L)
5 Cash Flow Statement 72-73
6 Statement of Changes in Equity 74-75
7 Notes No. 1 to 63 along with Significant Accounting | 76-122
Policies
8 Statement containing salient features of the financial | 123-124
statement of subsidiaties/associate companies/joint
ventures
9 Auditors” Report on Consolidated Financial | 125-145
Statements
10 Consolidated Financial Statements along with Cash | 146-149
flow Statement
11 Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes No. 1 to| 150-197
40 along with Significant Accounting Policies for
Consolidated Financial Statements
12 Route Map to the AGM venue 198-198




Gujarat State Investments Limited
Regd. Office: - 06"Floor, H.K. House, Opp. Bata Showroom,
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad- 380 009
Mail Id: info@gsil.co.in CIN. U64990G)19885GC010307
(P)-(079) 26586636, 26579731

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 37" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Gujarat State
Investments Limited (GSIL) will be held at the registered office of GSIL situated at the 06" Floor, H.K.
House, Opp. Bata Showroom, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad- 380 009 on Wednesday, the 24™ Day of
December 2025 at 11.00 A.M. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt

a. the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 31% March
2025 and the Reports of Comptroller and Auditor General of India, Statutory Auditors’
and the Directors’ Reports thereon.

b. the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 31* March
2025 and the Reports of Comptroller and Auditor General of India, Statutory Auditors’
and the Directors’ Reports thereon

2. To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend for the financial year 2024-2025 by passing the
following resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the interim dividend @ 07.20% ie. X 00.72/- per share on
1042769070 Equity Shares paid to the shareholders for the financial year ended 31 March, 2025, as per
the resolution passed by the Boatrd of Directors at their meeting held on 14™ February 2025 be and is
hereby noted and confirmed.”

3. To authorize the Managing Director of the Company to fix remuneration of Statutory Auditor, as
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, of the Company for F.Y. 2025-2026.

Special Business:
4. Appointment of M /s Vishal Mehta & Co as Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) read with read with Rule 9 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, (including any statutory
modifications, amendments or re-enactments thereto) and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for appointment of M/s



Vishal Mehta & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad (Firm registration number:
S2015GJ343900), for carrying out Secretarial Audit as also for issuance of Annual Secretarial
Compliance Report (ASCR) for a term of five consecutive years, commencing from Financial Year
2025-26 to 2029-30.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to finalize terms of appointment of Secretarial Auditor.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary, be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, for the
purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith, or incidental
thereto.”

5. Re-appointment of Shri Bhadresh Mehta [DIN 02625115] as an Independent Director of the
Company.

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any
statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV
to the Companies Act, 2013 including any other applicable Rules made under SEBI(Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Government of Gujarat letter
No. FD/OTH/e-file/4/2023/2049/A/(BPE), Shri Bhadresh Mehta [DIN 02625115] who was
appointed as an Independent Director (Non-Executive & Independent) by the Board of the
Company for one term commencing form 16™ May 2022 to conclusion of 37" Annual General
Meeting and who is being reappointed by Government of Gujarat as an independent director and
based on the noting of the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby re-appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second
term of three (3) consecutive years upto the conclusion of 40" Annual General Meeting of the
Company in the Calendar Year 2028 AND THAT who shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to take
such steps as may be necessary and incidental thereto and to sign and execute deeds, applications,
documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally to do all such
other acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving
effect to this Resolution.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
06th Floor, H.K. House, For Gujarat State Investments Limited
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad- 380 009

Date: 21.11.2025
Place: Ahmedabad Sandip shah

Company Secretary



Notes for Member’s attention:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of himself and such a proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

2. In this Notice, the term Member(s) or Shareholder(s) are used interchangeably.

3. The instrument appointing proxy should be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. The proxy form is attached herewith.

4. As per the provisions of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representative of the Company,
authorized by the resolution, is entitled to exercise the same rights and powers on behalf of the
Company which he represents as that Company would exercise if it were an individual member.

5. Members may note that this Notice of AGM and Integrated Annual Report for FY’25, will also be
available at the Company’s website http://gujsilin/, websites of Stock Exchange, viz. National Stock
Exchange of India Limited, at www.nseindia.com.

6.  The Shareholders who would like to express their views / pose queties on agenda items may submit
their questions in to the registered office of the Company or through email id: info@gsil.co.in of the
Company, by mentioning their name, folio, e-mail id and mobile number.

Please note that, Shareholdet’s queries / views / questions will be responded to, only if, the
Shareholder continues to hold the shares as on the cut-off date.

6. A statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
relating to the special business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

6. A brief profile and information of directors being appointed are annexed hereto

7. Members are informed that in case of joint holders joining the meeting, only such joint holder who is
first in the order of names will be entitled to vote and/or entitiled to received dividend, if any,.

6.  The results will also be displayed on the Notice Board of the company at its Registered Office.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board

06t Floor, H.K. House, For Gujarat State Investments Limited

Ashram Road, Ahmedabad- 380 009

Date : 21.11.2025
Place: Ahmedabad

Sandip shah
Company Secretary



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD (SS-2) ON GENERAL
MEETINGS AND SEBI LODR REGULATIONS, 2015

ITEM NO. 3- To authorize the Managing Director of the Company to fix remuneration of
Statutory Auditor, as appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, of the Company for F.Y. 2025-2026.

As per provisions of section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the Auditors
shall be fixed in the General Meeting of the Company or in such manner as may be determined therein.
Further, as per section 177 of Companies Act, 2013, read with SEBI LODR Regulations, Audit
Committee is required to recommend the appointment and fixation of remuneration of Statutory
Auditors to the Board.

Your Company bening a Government Company, in exercise of the powers conferred by section 139(5)
of the Companies Act 2013, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) appoints Statutory
Auditor(s) of the Company. Accordingly, on receipt of communication from C&AG regarding
appointment of Statutory Auditors and authorization by the members in the AGM, the Managing
Director decides and fixes the remuneration of Statutory Auditors. The remuneration is commensurate
with the quantum of work required to be undertaken by the Statutory. It is proposed to authorize
Managing Director of the Company to decide and fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor(s) of the
Company appointed by Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the Financial Year 2025-26 and
onwards.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and/or their relatives, is/ ate interested ot concerned,
financially or otherwise in the resolution except as may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the
proposed resolution to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommended the Resolution(s) as set out in the accompanied
Notice for approval of the shareholders.

ITEM NO. 4- Appointment of M/s Vishal Mehta & Co as Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, every listed entity incorporated in India
shall undertake secretarial audit and shall annex a secretarial audit report given by a company secretary
in practice, in such form as specified, with the annual report of the listed entity. Every listed entity shall
submit a secretarial compliance report in such form as specified, to stock exchanges, within sixty days
from end of each financial year. With effect from 01.04.2025, on the basis of recommendation of board
of directors, a listed entity shall appoint or re-appoint: (i) an individual as Secretarial Auditor for not
more than one term of five consecutive years; or (ii) a Secretarial Audit firm as Secretarial Auditor for
not more than two terms of five consecutive years, with the approval of its Shareholders in its Annual
General Meeting. Hence there is a requirement to appoint a Secretarial Auditor for a term of five years.

Board of Directors of our Compan has approved the Appointment of Secretarial Auditor of GSIL and
resolved to appoint of M/s Vishal Mehta & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad
(Firm registration number: S2015GJ343900), as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of
five consecutive years commencing from the FY 2025-26 subject to the approval of Shareholders of the
Company”. The Board Authorized Managing Director of your Company to fix fee payable to the
Secretarial Auditor. There is no material change in the fee payable to the newly appointed Secretarial
Auditor from that paid to the auditor. M/s Vishal Mehta & Co., Practicing Company Secretaties,



Ahmedabad is appointed on the basis of fulfilling the eligibility critetia as well as submitting the lowest
quote. Shri Vishal Mehta, senior and propriter of the firm, is a member of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and is having more than 14 years’ experience as Company Secretary in practice.

None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives has any concern or interest,
financial or otherwise, in passing of the said Ordinary Resolution.

ITEM NO. 5 - Re-appointment of Shri Bhadresh Mehta [DIN 02625115] as an Independent
Director of the Company.

Shri Bhadresh Mehta [DIN 02625115] is currently an Independent Director of the your Company,
Chairman of the Audit Committee (‘AC’), the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC'), the
Group Risk Management Committee (‘GRMC’) and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (‘SRC’) and
Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Shri Mehta was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company by the Government of Gujarat’s
order as your Company being Government Company and the Members of the Company at the 07
Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EoGM) of the Company held on July 6, 2022 apprvoed appointment
for a one term upto conclusion 37" Annual General Meeting.

The Government of Gujarat, taking into consideration the skills, expertise and competencies required for the
Board in the context of the business and sectors of the Company and based on the valuable inputs in
process of decision making to the Board vide letter no No. FD/OTH/e-file/4/2023/2049/A/(BPE) has
issued directions that Shri Mehta be re-appointmented as an Independent Director of the Company for a
second term of period of three years. Considering it is proposed to reappoint Shri Mehta for second term
commencing upto conlusion of 40t Annual General Meeting, not liable to retire by rotation, for the
approval of the Members by way of a Special Resolution. The Board of Directors of at its 170 held on 27
May 2025 took note of the directions issued by Government of Gujarat for reappointment of Shri Mehta for
second term.

Except Shri Mehta, none of the other Ditectors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives is/ate, in any way, concerned ot interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid Resolution of
the Notice.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
06t Floor, H.K. House, For Gujarat State Investments Limited
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad- 380 009

Date : 21.11.2025

Place: Ahmedabad
Sandip shah
Company Secretary



DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS, PROPOSED FOR APPOINTMENT/ RE-
APPOINTMENT PURSUANT TO SEBI LODR REGULATIONS, 2015 AND
SECRETARIAL STANDARD -2 ON GENERAL MEETING

Name Shri Bhadresh Mehta
DIN 02625115

Age 65

Date of first | 16.05.2025
Appointment on

the Board

Relationship with | None

other Directors &
KMP

Profile, Expertise
in specific
functional area

He holds professionally qualified senior managerial experience with
a proven success of over 28 years in steering finance, audit and
infotech functions of reputed business groups. His areas of
specialization are strategic planning, financial management, auditing,
information technology and risk management.

Qualifications

He is a Chartered Accountant, a Company Secretary and a Cost
Accountant by qualification.

Number of Shares | OQOwn:- NIL
held in the | For other person on beneficial basis :- NIL
Company as on
March 31, 2025.
Directorships held | * Gujarat State Investments Limited.
in other | * Gujarat State Financial Services Limited.
Companies * Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited.
* Gujarat State Petronet Limited.
* Gujarat Gas Limited.
* Prozeal Green Energy Limited
Directorship in | NIL
other Companies

along with listed
entities from
which the person
has resigned in the
past three years

Chairman/

Member of the
Committee of
Directors of other
Companies in

which she / he is a
Director as on 31st
March, 2025

* Gujarat State Investments Limited- Chairman in Audit Committee, NRC
Committee, Group Risk Management Comttiee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee(w.c.f. 04.09.2025) and Memebr of CSR Committee

* Gujarat State Financial Services Limited.- Chairman - Audit Committee

* Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited.- Chairman in
Audit Committee

* Gujarat State Petronet Limited.- Member in Audit Committee

* Gujarat Gas Limited- Member - Audit Committee Chairman- Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee

* Prozeal Green Energy Limited- Chairman- Audit Committee

Terms  of  re- | As per the order issued by the Government of Gujarat, he was reappointed

appointment for second term as an Independent Director upto the conclusion of 40t
Annual General Meeting of the Company in the Calendar Year 2028 or ll
his resignation or until further orders, whichever is earlier. In accordance with
the order issued by the Government of Gujarat there is no pecuniary relation
with the Company.

Remuneration Remuneration of NonExecutive Directors (NEDs) is decided by

proposed to be | Government of Gujarat through various G.R. and/or instructions and are




paid

paid remuneration by way of sitting fees only for attending the Board or
Committees meeting(s).

Last drawn | Sitting Fees paid to Shri Mehta reffered in Directors’ Report.

remuneration

Skills and | Please refer explanatory statement for Item No. 5 forming part of this Notice
capabilities

required for role &
manner in which
Director meets
such requirements

No. of board
meetings attended
during the
financial year

2024-25

Attended all 4 Board Meetings held during the period




Gujarat State Investments Limited
Regd. Office: - 06t"Floor, H.K. House, Opp. Bata Showroom,
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380 009

Mail Id: infoatgsil@gmail.com CIN. U64990G)19885GC010307
(P)-(079) 26586636, 26579731 web: www.gujsil.in

Form No. MGT-11

FORM OF PROXY

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name and Address of Shareholder Ledger Folio Number No. of shares held

I/We being a member/
members of Gujarat State Investments Limited holding Equity Shares hereby appoint
of

or failing him/her

of

as my/our proxy to vote for me/ us on my/our behalf at the 37" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 24™ Day of the December 2025 at 11.00 A.M. at the registered
office of the Company situated at 06" Floor, H.K. House, Opp. Bata Showroom, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-
380 009 and at any adjournment(s) thereof in respect of such followings resolutions,

Resolution | Resolutions For Against
No.

Ordinary Business

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) of
the Company for Financial Year ended on 315t March 2025 and the reports of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, statutory auditors’ and the
Directors’ Reports thereon.

2 To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend for the financial year 2024-2025

3 Authorize Managing Director to fix remuneration of Statutory Auditor

Special Business

4 Appointment of M/s Vishal Mehta & Co as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company
5 Re-appointment of Shri Bhadresh Mehta [DIN 02625115] as an Independent
Director of the Company
Signed this day of 20.
Affix Re
1/-
Revenue

Signature of Shareholder(s)
Note: The Proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for commencement of the aforesaid meeting.
The Proxy need not be a member of the Company.





















































































COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
STANDALONE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS OF GUJARAT STATE
INVESTMENTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025.

The preparation of standalone financial statements of Gujarat State Investments Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the Management of
the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Compiroller and Auditor General of
India under Section 139(5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated 1o have
been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 27 May 2025.

I. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the Standalone financial statements of Gujarat State Investments
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working
papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory
Auditors and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting

records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditors’ report
under Section 143 (6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

(Bijit Kumar Mukherjee)
Place: Ahmedabad Pr. Accountant General (Audit-II), Gujarat

Date: 03.10. 2024"






VISHAL MEHTA & CO.

Company Secretaries

Add: B-102, Shree Hari Arjun, Nr. Chanakyapuri Rly. Crossing,
Ghatlodia, Ahmedabad-380061, Gujarat.

M) 09925384302 (M) 09870026769

FORM NO.MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of

GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CIN: U64990GJ1988SGC010307

Regd. Office: 06™ Floor, H.K. House, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad — 380009, Gujarat, India.

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(hereinafter called “the Company”).Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information, explanations and clarifications provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

The Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued by the Company are listed on the Wholesale Debt
Market of the National Stock Exchange (NSE)

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

(i1) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(Not Applicable as the Company has not entered into any transaction falling within the purview of
aforesaid law.)



VISHAL MEHTA & CO.

Company Secretaries

(v) The following regulations and guidelines prescribedunder the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992(‘SEBI Act’):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;-Not Applicable as the Company has not entered into any transaction
during the year under review.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;-
Not Applicable as the Company has not entered into any transaction during the year under
review.

c¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue ofCapital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2018:-Not Applicable as the Company has not issued any shares/securities during
the year under review.)

d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme andEmployee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 andThe Securities and Exchange Board of India (ShareBased
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)Regulations, 2021;-Not Applicable as the Company has not
issued any shares/options to the Directors/Employees under the said Regulations during the
year under review.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)Regulations,
2008;-The Company has issued Rated & Listed Non-convertible Unsecured Redeemable
Debentures (NCDs) and has complied with all the Applicable Regulations made there under.

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;-The Company has
complied with all the Applicable Regulations issued there under during the year under
review.

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;-The
Equity shares of the Company are not listed on any recognized Stock Exchange, hence this
Regulation is not applicable.

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,2018;-The Equity
shares of the Company are not listed on any recognized Stock Exchange, hence this
Regulation is not applicable.

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertibleand Redeemable
Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013;-The Company has not issued any preference shares,
hence said regulation is not applicable for the period under review

j) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and DisclosureRequirements)
Regulation, 2015;-The Company has complied with the Rules and Regulations as enshrined
under LODR during the year under review to the extent applicable with respect to Debt
listing.



VISHAL MEHTA & CO.

Company Secretaries

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;- ;-
The Company has complied with the Rules and Regulations as enshrined under said
regulation during the year under review to the extent applicable with respect to Debt listing.

Based on my observation, I express that the Company has duly complied with the aforesaid provisions of
the law, wherever applicable during the year under review

I have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the followings:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i1) The Uniform Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange (NSE)
and listing obligations and disclosure requirements issued by Stock Exchange from time to time with
respect to debt listing.

During the year under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance ofExecutive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors as on31.03.2025. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took placeduring the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions ofthe Act except the instances provided above in the Observations.

As per the Information provided by the management, adequate notices were given toall directors to
scheduled Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agendawere sent at least seven days in advance
and a system exists for seeking and obtainingfurther information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and formeaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the meeting of Board of Directors/various committees (Viz. Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Company were carried out unanimously, I was informed that there were no dissenting
views of members during the year that were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that based on review of the compliance mechanism established by the Company, the
information provided by the Company, its officers, and authorized representatives during the conduct of
audit, and compliance certificate(s) placed before the Board Meeting,there are adequate systems and
processes in the Companycommensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensurecompliance with applicable laws, rules,regulations and guidelines.



VISHAL MEHTA & CO.

Company Secretaries

I further report The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) Registered with the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Non-Deposit Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI). The
Company has complied with all the provisions of Law and Rules/Regulations made there under
throughout the year. The Company has also filed various Returns and Forms with the RBI.

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed herewith and forms an
integral part of the Report.

For, Vishal Mehta & Co.
Company Secretaries
UCN: S2015GJ343900

Place: Ahmedabad \l\/jl ;Ciicha . Oigialysgned by Vistal
Date: 14/05/2025 Navinchandra
Mehta 17:39:12 +05'30'

Vishal Mehta

Proprietor/Practicing Company Secretary

ACS: 22991 COP: 15270

Peer Review Certificate No. 1788/2022
UDIN: A022991G000342145
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ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,

The Members of

GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CIN: U64990GJ1988SGC010307

Regd. Office: 06™ Floor, H.K. House, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad — 380009, Gujarat, India

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to M/s. GUJARAT
STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED (the ‘Company’) is the responsibility of the management of
theCompany. my examination was limited to the verification of records and procedureson test check
basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

. Maintenance of secretarial and other records of applicable laws is the responsibility ofthe management

of the Company. my responsibility is to issue Secretarial AuditReport, based on the audit of the
relevant records maintained and furnished to me bythe Company, along with explanations where so
required.

. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtainreasonable assurance

about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial andother legal records, legal compliance
mechanism and corporate conduct. Theverification was done on test check basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected insecretarial and other records. I believe that the processes and practices Ifollowed,
provides a reasonable basis for my opinion for the purpose of issue of theSecretarial Audit Report.

. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records andBooks of Accounts of

the Company.

. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about thecompliance of laws, rules

and regulations and major events during the audit period.

. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of theCompany nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management hasconducted the affairs of the Company

For, Vishal Mehta & Co.
Company Secretaries
UCN: S2015GJ343900

Vishal Digitally signed by Vishal
Place: Ahmedabad Navinchandra Navinchandra Mehta
Date: 14/05/2025 Date: 2025.05.14
Mehta 17:39:32 +05'30'
Vishal Mehta

Proprietor/Practicing Company Secretary
ACS: 22991 COP: 15270

Peer Review Certificate No. 1788/2022
UDIN: A022991G000342145
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Add: B-102, Shree Hari Arjun, Nr. Chanakyapuri Rly. Crossing,
Ghatlodia, Ahmedabad-380061, Gujarat.

(M) 09925384302 (M) 09870026769

Email: vic.cs09@gmail.com

To,

The Board of Directors

Gujarat State Investments Limited

CIN: U64990GJ1988SGC010307

Regd. Office: 06" Floor, H.K.House,

Ashram Road, Ahmedabad — 380009, Gujarat, India

SUB: Issuance of Final Secretarial Compliance Report (F.Y. 2024-25)

Dear Sir,

In reference to the subject matter and based on email communication dated 29" August, 2024 and 09™
September, 2024 regarding an appointment for Secretarial Compliance Report and dated 05" May, 2025
regarding draft Secretarial Compliance Report, I, hereby issue Final Secretarial Compliance Report for

the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25.

You are kindly requested to go through same and kindly acknowledge receipt of the same.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 14/05/2025

For, Vishal Mehta & Co.

Company Secretaries

UCN: S2015GJ343900

Vishal Digitally signed by Vishal

. Navinchandra Mehta
NaVInChandra Date: 2025.05.14

Mehta 17:40:37 +05'30'
Digitally Signed by
Vishal Mehta
Proprietor/Practicing Company Secretary
ACS: 22991 COP: 15270
Peer Review Certificate No. 1788/2022



VISHAL MEHTA & CO.

Company Secretaries

Add: B-102, Shree Hari Arjun, Nr. Chanakyapuri Rly. Crossing,
Ghatlodia, Ahmedabad-380061, Gujarat.

(M) 09925384302 (M) 09870026769

Email: vic.cs09@gmail.com

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF

GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31°" MARCH, 2025

I have conducted the review of the Compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Gujarat State Investments Limited (hereinafter referred as ‘the listed entity’)
(CIN: U64990GJ1988SGC010307) having its Registered office at 6™ Floor, H.K. House, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat, India. Secretarial Review was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the listed entity’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the listed entity and also the information provided by the listed entity, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, I hereby report
in my opinion, the listed entity has, during the review period covering the financial year ended on 31*
March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the listed entity has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

I, Vishal Mehta, a proprietor of Vishal Mehta & Co., a firm of Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad
have examined:

(a) All the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by the Gujarat State
Investment Limited (“the listed entity”)

(b) The filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

(c) Website of listed entity,

(d) any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification,
for the year ended 31% March, 2025 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions

of:

i. the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued thereunder; and

ii. the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India(“SEBI”);
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Company Secretaries

The specific Regulations, whose provisions, and the circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, have
been examined, include:-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; (The Company has complied with the Rules and Regulations as enshrined
under LODR during the year under review to the extent applicable with respect to Debt listing.)

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; (Not applicable to the Company as there is no such transaction during theyear under review.)

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company as there is no such transaction during the year
under review.)

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable
to the Company as there is no such transaction during the year under review.)

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company as there is no such transaction
during the year under review.)

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible and Redeemable
Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; (Not applicable to the Company as there is no such
transaction during the year under review.)

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not
applicable to the Company during the year under review)

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018;

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (De-listing of equity shares) Regulations, 2009: (Not
applicable as the equity shares are not listed on any Stock Exchange)

(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to the issue and Share Transfer Agent) Regulations,

1999;

(k) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 —
(The Company has issued Rated & Listed Non-Convertible Un-secured Redeemable Debenture
(NCD) and has complied with all the Applicable Regulations issued thereunder.)

(1) Depositories Act and Regulations and Laws framed thereunder and circulars/guidelines issued
thereunder;
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In terms of the NSE Circular Ref No: NSE/CML/2023/30 dated 10™ April, 2023, and amendments
therein, my affirmations, is appended as below:

Sr. No.

Particulars

Compliance
Status
(Yes/No/NA)

Observation/Remarks
by PCS

Secretarial Standards:

The compliances of the listed entity are in
accordance with the applicable Secretarial Standards
(SS) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
India (ICSI), as notified by the Central Government
under section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013
and mandatorily applicable.

Yes

Adoption and timely updation of the Policies:

* All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations are
adopted with the approval of board of directors of
the listed entities.

» All the policies are in conformity with SEBI
Regulations and have been reviewed & timely
updated as per the regulations/ circulars/ guidelines
issued by SEBI.

Yes

Yes

Maintenance and disclosures on the Website:

* The Listed entity is maintaining a functional
website.

+ Timely dissemination of the documents/
information under a separate section on the website.
*  Web-links provided in annual corporate
governance reports under Regulation 27(2) are
accurate and specific which re-directs to the relevant
document(s)/ section of the website.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Disqualification of Director:

None of the Directors of the Company are
disqualified under Section 164 of the Companies
Act, 2013 as confirmed by the listed entity.

NA

Provision not
applicable to the
Government Company

Details related to Subsidiaries of listed entities
have been examined w.r.t.:

(a) Identification of material subsidiary companies.
(b) Disclosure Requirements of material as well as
other subsidiaries.

Yes
Yes

Preservation of Documents:

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining
records as prescribed under SEBI Regulations and
disposal of records as per Policy of Preservation of
Documents and Archival policy prescribed under
SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015.

Yes

Performance Evaluation:
The listed entity has conducted performance

NA

Provision not
applicable to the
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evaluations of the Board, Independent Directors,
and the Committees at the start of every financial
year as prescribed in SEBI Regulations.

Government Company

Related Party Transactions:

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of
the Audit Committee for all Related party
transactions; or
(b) The listed entity has provided detailed reasons
along with confirmation whether the transactions
were subsequently approved/ratified/rejected by the
Audit Committee, in case no prior approval has
been obtained.

NA

NA

The Company being a
Core Investment
Company, all the

transactions are in
ordinary course of
business

Disclosure of events or information:

The listed entity has provided all the required
disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 along with
Schedule III of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015
within the time limits prescribed thereunder.

Yes

10.

Prohibition of Insider Trading:

The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation
3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

Yes

11.

Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if
any:

No action(s) has been taken against the listed entity/
its promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either by SEBI
or by Stock Exchanges (including under the
Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI
through various circulars) under SEBI Regulations
and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder except as
provided under separate paragraph herein (**).

NA

No action is taken by
SEBI or Stock
Exchange against the
Company.

12.

Additional Non-compliances, if any:
No additional non-compliance was observed for any
SEBI regulation/circulars/guidance note etc.

NA

Compliances related to Resignation of Statutory Auditors from Listed Entities and their Material
Subsidiaries as per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18™ October, 2019:

Sr. No. Particulars Compliance | Observation/Remarks
Status by PCS
(Yes/No/NA)
l. Compliances with the following conditions while appointing/reappointing auditor
If the auditor has resigned within 45 days from the NA Gujarat State
end of a financial year, the auditor before such Investments Limited is
resignation, has issued a limited review/audit report a Government
of such quarter; or Company, C&AG
office pursuant to
If the Auditor has resigned after 45 days from the NA section 139 read with

end of a quarter of a financial year, the auditor
before such resignation, has issued a limited

section 129(4) of the
Companies Act, 2013
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review/audit report for such quarter as well as next
quarter; or

If the auditor has signed limited review/audit report
for the first three quarters of a financial year, the
auditor before such resignation has issued limited
review/audit report for the last quarter of such
financial year as well as audit report for such
financial year.

NA

has appointed M/s.
J.T.Shah& Co.,
Chartered Accountants,
Ahmedabad (FRN:
116848) as a Statutory
Auditor of the
Company for F.Y.
2024-25, The Auditor
also confirmed his
appointment and the
Company has noted
same as authorized by
its members at General
Meeting w.e.f
18.12.2024..

Other conditions relating to Resignation of Statutory Auditor

1) Reporting of concerns by Auditor with respect to
listed entity/its material subsidiary to the Audit
Committee:

a. In case of any concern with the management of
listed entity/material subsidiary such a non-
availability of information/non cooperation by
the management which has hampered the audit
process, the auditor has approached the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the listed
entity and the Audit Committee shall receive
such concern directly and immediately without
specifically waiting for the quarterly Audit
Committee Meetings

b. In case the auditor proposes to resign, all
concerns with respect to the proposed
resignation, along with relevant documents has
been brought to the notice of the Audit
Committee. In cases where the proposed
resignation is due to non-receipt of
information/explanation from the Company, the
auditor has informed the Audit Committee the
details of information/explanation sought and not
provided by the management, as applicable.

c. The Audit Committee/Board of Directors, as the
case may be, deliberated on the matter on receipt
of such information from auditor relating
proposal to resign as mentioned above and
communicate its views to the management and
the auditor.

ii) Disclaimer in case of non-receipt of information
The auditor has provided an appropriate
disclaimer in its audit report, which is in

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA
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accordance with the Standards of Auditing as
specified by ICAI/NFRA, in case where listed
entity/its material subsidiary has not provided
information as required by Auditor.

3. The listed entity/its material subsidiary has

2019.

resignation,
Annexure-A
CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18™ October,

in

obtained information from the Auditor upon
in the format as
SEBI

specified in
circular

NA

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circular/guidelines
issued there under, except in respect of the matters specified below:

S | Compliance Regulati | Dev | Ac | The of Action | Det | Fin | Observati | Mana | Re
r | Requirement on/Circu | iatio | tio ails | e on/Remar | geme | mar
. | (Regulations/ci | lar No. n n of | Am | ks of nt ks
N | rculars/guideli ta viol | oun | Practicin | Resp
o | nes including ke atio |t g onse
specific clause) n n Company
by Secretary
NIL Advisory/Clarif NIL
ications/fine/Sh
ow Cause
Notice/Warnin
g, etc.

(b) The listed entity has taken following actions to comply with the observations made in previous

reports:
S | Compliance Regulati | Dev | Ac | The of Action | Det | Fin | Observati | Mana | Re
r | Requirement on/Circu | iatio | tio ails | e on/Remar | geme | mar
. | (Regulations/ci | lar No. n n of | Am | ks of nt ks
N | rculars/guideli ta viol | oun | Practicin | Resp
o | nes including ke atio |t g onse
specific clause) n n Company
by Secretary
NIL Advisory/Clarif NIL
ications/fine/Sh
ow Cause
Notice/Warnin
g, etc.

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review:

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information
furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity.
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2. Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and information.

This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of Accounts

of the listed entity.

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 14/05/2025

For, Vishal Mehta & Co.
Company Secretaries
UCN: S2015GJ343900

Vishal Digitally signed by Vishal
. Navinchandra Mehta
Navinchandra i 50250514 17:41:02
Mehta +05'30'
Digitally Signed by
Vishal Mehta

Proprietor/Practicing Company Secretary
ACS: 22991 COP: 15270

Peer Review Certificate No. 1788/2022
UDIN: A022991G000341617
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Board of Directors

Gujarat State Investments Limited
Ahmedabad

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of GUJARAT STATE
INVESTMENTS LIMITED ('the Company') which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter
referred as to the 'standalone financial statements'),

Z. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with companies (Indian Accounting
standards) rule, 2015 as amended ["Ind AS"} and other accounti ng principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March 2025, and it's profit (including other
comprehensive incomel}, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

l3asis for Opinion
3. Weconducted ourauditin accordance with the Standards on Auditi ng ('SAS') specified under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act'). Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI') together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

201202, Lalito Complex, 35273, Rasaln Marg, Nr. Jain Temple
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, ¢
Phone: 264 444 20, 264 444 30, 264 444 40, 265 604 40 Page 1 of 68
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Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of these standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report.

Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

1.

Sale of Investments in Associates (Unquoted)
(Refer note 3 [A)(a), 7 & 30 to the standalone
financial statements).

Investments in Equity and other Securities
Instruments (Unquoted) aggregate a significant
amount of the Company’s total assets as at
March 31, 2025.

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures in relation to the
sale and valuation of investments
included, among others:

= We assessed the Company's internal

controls over investment recording,
valuation, and sales, including cost

The Company measures its investments determination and gain/loss
Associates at Cost as per compliance of IND AS. recognition,

During the financial year ended March 31, |« We sampled significant  sale
2025, the Company undertook significant sales transactions, including the Associate
of its investment portfolio of Associate Company  investment, verifying

Company amounting to %1,000 crores. This
represents a substantial portion of its total
investment portfolio stood on 1" day of FY. of
%7.061 crores.

+  \We

proceeds, tracing cost of acquisition,
and recaleculating gains/flosses for
accuracy and completeness,

reviewed wvaluation policies,
independently verified quoted prices,
and evaluated management's models
and assumptions for unquotedy/illiquid

investments, including  sensitivity
analysis.
» Assessed the completeness of

recording of all sale transactions.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above
matter.

2017202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Mr. Jain Temple,
MWavrangpura, Ahmedaobad- 380009
Phone: 264 444 20, 264 444 30, 264 444 40, 265 604 40
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Information other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible- for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, obtained at the date of this
auditor's report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and as may be legally advised.

Management's Responsibilitiesfor the standalone Ind AS Financial Results

6. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matter states in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of state of affairs, profit and loss including other comprehensive income, change in equity
and cash flows of the company and other financial information in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in India Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principle generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for p reventing and detecting
frauds and others irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making:
judgement and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the!
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

8. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financi

reporting process.

200202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple
Novrangpura, .-"-I'lrnr_\d-:::-ui_:'-‘.‘fﬁﬂ'f.}ﬂ'? o Page 3 of 68
Phone: 264 444 20, 264 444 30, 264 444 40, 265 604 40
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Auditor's Responsibility

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements Can arise from fraud or error and are Considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the standalone financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with 5AS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also,
¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are !
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management
and Board of Directors.

¢+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. Jf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
Including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

2007202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-330009. Page 4 of 68
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11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of mast significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
14. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Government
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. As required under the directions and sub-directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India
in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of Companies Act, 2013 and on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to information and
explanation given to us, we are enclosing our report in the "Annexure-C". *

16. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit,
we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company, so far
as, it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The standalone financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d. Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

2017202, Lalita Complex, 35273, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad- 380009 Page 5 of 68
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

e. As Per Notification No. GSR 463 {El dated 5th June 2015, the provisions of section 164 (2) is not
applicable to the government company, therefore, we have not commented on receipt of
representation from the directors and status of their qualification for directorship on the date of
financial report.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

g As Per Notification No. GSR 463 (El dated 5th June 2015, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
provisions of the section 197 read with schedule V of the companies Act, 2013 regarding
remuneration to directors are not applicable, since it is government company.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements. (Refer Note-32 to the standalone financial
statements);

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources ar
kind of funds} by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries"), which the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The Management of the Company has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarautee, security or the like on Lehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

2017202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

{c)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll{e), as provided under (a) and (b) under

"clause 4(d}", contain any material misstatement.

v. The interim dividend proposed during the year, declared and paid during the year in accordance
with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable. The Board of Directors of the Group have proposed
interim dividend for the year which is approved by the Board of Directors at the Board Meeting,
The amount of dividend paid is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which includes test check, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention the date of

implementation of edit log feature.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 27/05/2025

2017202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
Wavrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009.
Phone: 264 444 20, 264 444 30, 264 444 40, 265 604 40

fa@itehion

For, J. T. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Rggd. No. 109616W)

{A. K. Panchal)

Partner

(M MNo.: 116848)
UDIN:25116848BMKYUDS5268
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Annexure "A’ - to the Independent Auditor's report

Referred to in paragraph 15 of our report of even date to the Members of Gujarat State Investments
Limited for the year ended 31* March, 2025.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we state that:

ii.

il

Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE")-

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

1. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of PPE.

2. The company does not own any intangible assets and hence reporting under clause (i)(a)((2)) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the ‘Order’) is not applicable,

PPE have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; Material
Discrepancies noticed on such verification have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. -

The company does not own any immovable property and hence clause 3(i}(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

During the year, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipments or intangible assets
hence clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made there
under.

Inventory

a)

b)

The company does not hold inventory, and it is not engaged in the business of trading of securities
and therefore, this clause is not applicable and hence clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits including non-fund-based letter of
credit facility from banks on the basis of security of current assets and hence clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

Unsecured Loan
The company is not required to maintain the register under the provisions of Section 189 in view of
the exemptions given to Government company vide notification No. G5R 463(E) dated 5th June 2015.

During the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties” and hence these clauses (a), (b), {c), (d), (e} and
(f) of the order are not applicable.

Page & of 68




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

iv.

wvi.

vii.

viii.

.

Compliance of Section 185 and 186

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act’) with respect to loans or advances in the nature of loans, investments made, guarantees
provided and securities given.

Acceptance of Deposits

The Company has not accepted deposits, within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the rules framed there under. No order has been
passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any
court or any other Tribunal.

Costing Records
As the company is a core investment company and therefare this para is not applicable and hence
clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

Statutory Dues

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the a ppropriate authorities.

There are no such arrears as at 31st March, 2025 for a period more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in clause (a) above that have not been deposited as on
31st March, 2025 on account of any dispute, except for the following dues which has shown as
contingent Liabilities in Note 32 of Financial Statement-

Amount Paid | Period to which
Name Demand
: Under the amount Forum where the
Ofthe | Nature of dues raised ;
SR (Rs. In Lacs) Protest relates dispute is pending
: (Rs. In Lacs) (A.Y.)
Income Income Tax 1452.43 290.48 2013-14 CIT (A)
Tax Including 1241094
Act, 1961 interest and 34.04 - 2018-19 CIT(A)
penalty as - - 2013-14 High Court
applicable. (Appeal by Dept.)

# Refund of AY. 2024-25 amounting to Rs. 1241.09 Lacs has been adjusted against the pending
demand pertaining to AY. 2023-14.

Disclosure of transactions not recorded in the books.
There is no such transaction not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of

1961).

Default in Repayments
The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a bank or to debenture holders. The

company has not obtained any loan from financial institutiaz

(e) and (f) of the order are not applicable.

<dence clauses 3(ix) (a), (b), (<), (d),
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Xi.

xii.

xiii.

®iv.

xvi.

Moneys raised by IPO, FPO & preferential allotment/ private placement of shares or convertible

debentures

a. The company has not raised fund through initial or further public offer or through debt
instruments during the year. The company has also not raised funds through a term loan and
hence, clause (x) (a) of the order is not applicable.

b. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible). Hence, Clause (x) (b) of the
Order is not applicable.

Fraud
a. We report that no material fraud by the Company or any material fraud on the Company by it’s
officer or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b. No report u/s 143(12) of the Companies Act is required to be filed by the auditor in form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies Rule, 2014 with Central Government.

c. No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the company upto the date of
this report.

Nidhi Company
The company is not a Nidhi company, hence the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable to the company.

Related Party Transactions

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, subject to notification No. 463(E) dated 5th June 2015. The details have been disclosed in
the Standalone Financial Statements in Note Mo. 30 as required by the applicable accounting
standards,

Internal Audit System
a. The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. During the course of our audit, we have considered, the reports of Internal Audit for the period
under audit, issued to the Company during the year till date, in determining the nature, ti ming
and extent of our audit procedures in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610 “Using
the work of Internal Auditors”

Non cash Transactions with Directors

The company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected
with them as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 hence the provisions of clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

Secd5 -lA of RBI Act

a. The company is required to get registered with the RBI as NBFC under the provisions of section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, ]
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

xviil.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 27/05/2025

b. The company has obtained registration as Core Investment Non-Banking Company.

c. Company continues to fulfil the criteria of a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

d. Company do not have any more than one CIC as part of its Group.

Cash losses.
The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding

financial year.

Resignation of the statutory auditors during the year

During the year, M/s. Agrawal & Dhandhania, the erstwhile statutory auditors of the Company have
resigned and we have been appointed by C&AG. As informed, there have been no issues, objections
or concerns raised by the said outgoing auditors.

Capability of company of meetingits liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

This clause "Transfer of amount remaining unspent under sub-section (S) of section 135 to Fund
specified in Schedule VII" is not applicable as the required amount was duly spent by the company.

For, J. T. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

{Firm Regd. No. 109616W)

(A. K. Panchal)

Partner

(M No.: 116848)

UDIN: 25116848BMKYUD5268
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

ANNEXURE ‘8" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 17 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’),

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Gujarat
State Investments Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Com pany for the year ended on that date,

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gujarat State Investments Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial contrals
over financial reporting were operati ng effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Inte rnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to

standalone financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone. financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone fina ncial statements, whether due to fraud or error-

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial contrals with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assu rance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone financial statements for exte rnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statemen include
those policies and procedures that 1). pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and 3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls withreference to Standalone Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For, J. T. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regd. No. 109616W)

(A. K. Panchal)

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 27/05/2025

= J Partner
s 7 (M No.: 116848)
i UDIN: 25116848BMKYUDS5268
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 16 under

Annexure 'C' to the Independent Auditor's Report

‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of

our report of even date).

Comment of the Auditor on the directions and sub-direction of the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India issued under the provisions of the section 143(5) of the companies Act, 2013.

Sr. No.

Areas Examined

Comments

1

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Based on records examined and explanations
given to us, the company has system in place
to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system, namely, Tally Prime Gold
accounting software system.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to
the company due to the company's inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a government
company, then this direction is also applicable
for statutory auditor of lender compa ny).

According to the information and
explanation given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company,
there has been no restructuring
/waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc.
made by a lender due to the company's
inability to repay loan. Further, company has
also not granted any restructuring
[/waiver/write off of debts/ loans/interest

etc. to its borrower during the year.

Whether funds  (grants/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes from
Central/State Government or its agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term
and conditions?

List the cases of deviation.

Based on records examined and explanations
given to wus, Funds (granted [subsidy)
received /receivables for specific schemes
from the central /State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for
[utilized as per its term and conditions.
There were no cases of deviation found
during the period under audit.

Page 14 of 68




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Sector specific sub-directions under section 143(5) of the companies Act.2013-

Finance Sector:
Sr. No. Areas Examined Comments
1 Whether the company has complied with the | Based on records examined and explanations

directions issued by Reserve Bank of India for
Non-Banking (MBFCs), classification of non-
performing assets and capital adequacy norms
for NBFC.

given to us, the company has complied with the
directions issued by Reserve Bank of India for
Non-Banking (NBFCs), classification of non-
performing assets and capital adequacy norms
for NBFC.

Whether the company has a system to ensure
that loans were secured by adequate security,
free from encumbrances and have first charge
on the mortgaged assets. Further, instances of
undue delay in disposal of seized units may
be reported.

The company has not given any loan during the
period under audit.

Whether introduction of any scheme for
settlement of dues and extensions thereto
complied with policy/ guidelines of Company/
Government.

Mo,

As no such settlement scheme has been
introduced by the company during the period
under audit.

Comments on the confirmation of balances of
trade receivables, trade payables, term
deposits, bank accounts and cash ebtained

As company is not engaged in the trading
activities, there is no trade receivables and
trade payables. Confirmations of balances of
term deposits, bank accounts and cash have
been obtained. The bank accounts have been
reconciled,

Whether the bank guarantees have been
revalidated in time.

The company has not obtained faccepted any
bank guarantees except following.

The company has provided bank guarantee
amounting to Rs 25 Lacs towards recovery
expenses fund with the MNational Stock
Exchange (NSE} and same is wvalid up to
25.03.2028.

Fage 15 of 68




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CIN : U64990GJ19885GC010307

As per our report attached

For, ). T. Shah & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 109616W) ﬂffﬁ:’f"

=31

i

T
(A. K. Panchal)
Partner

(M. No. : 116848)
Place : Ahmedabad
Date: 27.05.2025

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Gujarat State Investments Limited

Sttt

TANDAL BALA SHE AT 31st MAR 2025
(Amount in lakhs.)
S e g | Note | As at As at
=) g | No. | 31stMarch,2025 | 315t March, 2024
ASSETS
1 |Financial Assets
a.|Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 728.23 69.87
b.|Bank Balance other than (a) above 5 9,004.02 9,011.75
c.|Loans 6 - -
d.|Investments 7 6,26,422.71 7,06,111.78
e.|Other Financial assets 8 2.54 2.93
2 |Non-Financial Assets
a.|Current tax assets (Net) ] 1,746.08 2,193.06
b.|Property, Plant and Equipment 11 7.31 9.81
c.|Other non -financial assets 12 2.34 0.03
: ~ Total Assets e Pl | R 0,37,913.23 7,17,399.23
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY =
LIABILITIES
1 |Financial Liabilities
a.|Debt Securities 13 2,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
b.|Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 14 17,757.00 22,757.00
c.|Other financial liabilities 15 201.71 23.06
2 |Non-Financial Liabilities
a.|Provisions 16 14.63 12.03
b.|Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 10 28,130.40 38,894.51
¢.|Other non-financial liabilities 17 1.53 2.94
EQuITY
a.|Equity Share capital 18 1,04,276.91 1,04,276.91
b.|Other Equity 19 2,87,531.05 2,51,432.78
_____Total Liabilities And Equity S | MR 6,37,913:23 | N 7,17, 399.23

o

Mafaging Director

o

Director

Company Secretary
Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 27.05.2025

Chief Finanl:lai %zcer i
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

LOS55 FOR

CIN : U64990GJ19885GC010307

ANDALOMNE STATEMENT OF PROFI EYEAREN

1st MAR 2025

(Amount in Lakhs.)

s W | Note |  Fertheyear | - Forthe year
5r. No Particulars ‘No. |  ended “ended
- _ | 31stMarch, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Revenue From Operations
i.|Interest Income 20 1,055.00 1,103.02
ii.|Dividend Income 21 13,367.80 28,671.54
ii. |[Net gain on fair value changes 23 - 565.26
(1}|Total Revenue from operations 14,422.80 30,339.82
(I1){Other Income p 0.01 0.26
[LLI¥} Total Income (I+11) 14,422.81 30,340.08
Expenses
i.[Finance Casts 24 - 175
ii|Net loss on fair value changes 23 95.18 -
ii.|Employee Benefits Expenses 25 70.40 64.43
iii.|Depreciation & amortization 11 275 4.41
iv.|Others expenses 26 109.14 97.13
{1v) = —~ ~C DRSO Total Expenses (IV)[5 T | e - 277.48 ~ 16172
(VI|Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (Il - v) 14,145.35 30,172.36
{V1)|Exceptional items 27 - (12,524.07)
(Vil}| Profit/(loss) before tax (V -1 ) 14,145.35 42,696.43
{VIil)| Tax Expense
(i} Current Tax 28 1,709.06 1,653.14
(i) Earlier Year Tax 0.04 0.30
(iil) Deferred Tax Liability, [Assets) 28 (92.92) 22.20
Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing operations
(1x) (V) Vil ) - 12,529.17 41,020.79
(X) " profit/(loss) for the period (IXeXII)| e 12/529,17 | ~41,020.79
(¥1)|Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 20,405.85 2,05,240.54
E:Erl an:-me tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 10,671.19 (38,876.91)
Subtotal (A) 31,077.04 1,66,363.63
= _Other Comprehensive Income (A)] | SR 1;077.04 ~1,66,363.63
(xil Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising
Profit/(Loss) and other Comprehensive Income for the period) 43,606.22 2.07,384.41
(X1} |Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted (In Rs.) 29 1.20 3.93

For, ). T. Shah & Co
Chartered Accountants

{A. K. Panchal)
Partner

(M. No. : 116848)
Place : Ahmedabad
Date: 27.05.2025

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
As per our report attached

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Gujarat State Investments Limited

St

v

Ma nﬂing Director

A

Director

Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 27.05.2025
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CIN : U64990GJ19885GC010307
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the Quarter ended March 31,2025
{Amount in Lakhs.)

P YearEnded [ YearEnded

Particulars. _March31,2025 | March 31,2024
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net Profit Before Tax & Exceptional Item 14,145.35 30,172.36
Adjustments for :
MNet Loss on Fair value changes 95.18 -
MNet Gain on Fair value changes - (565.26)
Depreciation 2.75 441
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Investment
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Property, plant &
Equipment (0.01) (0.01)

ti ofit ing capital

Operating profit before working capita 14,243.27 26,611.50
changes
Mowvements in working Capital
Inter Corporate Deposit (Including Interest) S \3,264.65)
Decrease/increase in other financial assets 038 .58
Other Non Financial Assets (2.32) 0.10
Payment of Interest on Debt Securities (29,682.49) (27,510.00)
Other Non Financial Liabilities 1.19 4.33
Other Financial Liabilities 178.37 6.91
Direct Tax Paid [ Net of Refunds ) (1,262.11) (3,307.42)
Net Cash used in Operating Activities (16,515.96) (4,458.35)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase of Property, plant & Equipment (0.25) (1.89)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & 0.02
Equipment ; 3
Proceeds from sale of Investment 1,00,000.00 13,211.68
Net Cash from Investing Activities 99,999.77 13,209.79
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES
Proceeds/ Payment from Debt Securities (1,00,000.00) -
Government Support Received to pay Interest
on Debt Securities £9,082.49 21,510.00
Dividend Paid (7,507.94) (23,045.20)
Proceeds/ Payment from unsecured loans {5,000.00)| (13,243.00)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (82,825.45) (8,778.20)
Net Increase / ( Decrease ) in Cash And Cash
Equivalents (A +B +C) i (26.25)
Cash And Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance s e
Cash And Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance i i
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Note: The above statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under "
Standard (Ind AS - 7) "Statement of Cash Flows".

Indirect method” as set aut in the indiar Accounting

Net Cash generated from Operating activity is determined after adjusting the following;
(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 | 31st March,2024
Interest Received 1,055.00 1,103.02
Dividend Received 13,367.80 28,671.54
Interest Paid - 1.75

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents and a Reconciliation of the amounts in the
statement of cash flow with equivalent items reported in Balance sheet :

1. Figures reported in bracket represent cash outflows.
2. Previous years figures have been regrouped

3. Since Company is a Investrment Company, Purchase & sale of
from Investing activities & interest / dividend earned from sald |
of " Cash flow from Operating activities”.

{Amount in Lakhs.)
As at As at

iz s 315t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Cash on Hand 0.07 0.32
Balance with Banks 6.83 28.65
In Liquid deposit with Gujarat State Financial 5§ 72054 40.87
Others 0.79 0.03
Cash and Cash Eguhalents-qaslglr Balance 728.23 69.87
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars March 31, 2024 Net Cash Flow | Non Cash Flow | March 31, 2025
Debt Securities 3,00,000.00 -1,00,000.00 - 2,00,000.,00
Borrowing (Other than Debt Securities) 22,757.00 -5,000.00 17,757.00
Total 3,22,757.00 =1,05,000,00 - 2,17,757.00
Particulars March 31, 2023 Met Cash Flow | Non Cash Flow |March 31,2024
Debt Securities 3,00,000.00 - = 3,00,000.00
Borrowing (Other than Debt Securities) 36,000.00 -13,243.00 - 22,757.00
Total 3,36,000.00 -13,243.00 - 3,22,757.00
MNotes:

rearranged whenever necessary to confirm to current year's figures.

investments have been considered as part of " Cash flow
nvestments during the year have been considered as part

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
As per our report attached

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Gujarat State investments Limited

ptpor”

For, ). T. Shah & Co

Chartered Accountants :‘-’f "
Firm Regd. No. 109616W)— ;fff“

-

Y

Managing Director Director
r
A K Panchal ? @: \
e Tpeatt
(M. No. : 116848) Company Secretary Chief Financia cer

Place : Ahmedabad
Date: 27.05.2025

Place : Gandhinagar
Date :27.05.2025
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025
Company Overview & Material Accounting Policies

1.

Reporting Entity

Gujarat State Investments Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Company domiciled in India, with its registered office
situated at 6" Floor, H K House, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad, 380009, Gujarat, India. The Company has been
incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily involved in Investments
activity. The company has been registered as a Core Investments Company (CIC) Specified NBFC with the Reserve
Bank of India in terms of the regulation governing Non-Banking Financial Companies.

Basis of preparation

b.

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as

amended.

Functional and presentation currency
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as
per the requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

3) Quoted Investments other than Investments in Subsidiary and Associates — measured at fair value

Use of Estimates and Judgments:

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates, and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, incomes
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical
experience and other factors including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments:
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the respective note.

Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties:

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the respective note.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

e. Measurement of Fair Values:
The Company has established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the Company
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations
meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should
be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s Board of Directors.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
financial statements.

Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the respective
note.

3. Material Accounting Policies
A.  Financial Instruments
a. Financial Assets:
i) Classification:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* Those measured at amortized cost and
* Those measured at fair value through profit or loss.
* Those measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions

and is not designated as at FVTPL and FVCOI:

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows: and

= the contractual terms of a financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of Principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition except if and in the

T oA
period the Company changes its business qf‘ T T oing financial assets.
e D

T
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

ii.)

iii.)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset when it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments and measures at its fair value. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net
Financial assets at FVTPL gains including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
Financial assets at FVOCI gains including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized through other comprehensive income.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The amortized
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at
amortized cost

Equity Instrument:

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company
decides to classify the Equity instruments either as at FVTOC! or FVTPL. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCl to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

The company has elected to Fair Value Investment in equity shares of subsidiary and associate
at transitional date and carry the same as deemed cost thereafter.

De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized

Page 24 of 68



GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

b. Fimancial Liabilities:
(i) Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at Historical cost. Government of Gujarat, in
capacity of the Promoter of the company, provides investment funds in form of
interest free loans having specific directions to invest in equity shares of Group Entities of
the company in terms of CIC directions. Investment funds, released as loan by GoG,
when received for investment in equity are recognized as financial liabilities. There
exist an obligation, however, the terms and conditions do not specify that whether the loan
is repayable on demand and also fixed repayment schedule is not specified.

(i) De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified
terms is recognised in the profit or loss.

B. Property, Plant and Equipment
i.  Recognition and Measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Useful lives have been determined in accordance with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The
residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss.

ii. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which are in line with as specified

under schedule Il of the Act.

Useful life of the assets are as under:
1. Vehicle - 8 years

2. Furniture & Fixtures — 10 years

3. Office Equipment — 10 years

4, Computers — 3 years

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such asset is ready for its
intended use. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. PPE is
derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Dc

E‘

Lease

The company’'s lease arrangements primarily consist of lease for office building. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months
or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered
by employees.

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount using market yields at the end of reporting peried on government bonds.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the Asset Ceiling’). In order to
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of
a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other
Comprehensive Income.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal obligation as a result of past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the
otes to the financial statements. A contingent asset is nejthac recognized nor disclosed if inflow of
dconomic benefit is probable. ' 3




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

F. Revenue Recognition
Income from dividend is accounted as and when such dividend has been declared and company’s right to

receive payment is established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow
to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is recognized on time
proportionate basis.

G. Income Tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss in respective year.

(i) Current Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for

the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using
tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Current tax assets
and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or

simultaneously.

(i) DeferredTax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset Is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
and associates will be recognized only to the extent that, it is probable that:

» the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and

» taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on net basis or their tax assists ang "! igs will be realized simultaneously.

(1%

%
"
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4 ¥
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GUIJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

H. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with
banks and other short term highly liquid Investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original maturity is three
manths or less.

I. Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to equity
shareholders (after adjustment for diluted earnings) by average number of weighted equity shares
outstanding during the year plus potential equity shares.

J. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from Operating Activities are reported using the indirect method whereby the profit before
tax is adjusted for the effect of the transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past
and future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated. Company being an Investment Company, Purchase & sale of investments have
been considered as part of "Cash flow from Investing activities” & interest / dividend earned from said
investments during the year have been considered as part of "Cash flow from Operating activities".

K. Otherncome

“Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance”

Government of Gujarat Support and Assistances received are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 20.
Government support and assistance takes many forms varying both in the nature of the assistance
given and in the conditions which are usually attached to it. Government support is recognized through
profit and loss when it is established that the support is for the purpose other than capital expenditure
and the related revenue expenditure has been adjusted against government support/ grant for the
purpose of disclosure in statement of profit and loss. A government support/grant that becomes
receivable in terms of government resolution is recognized in profit or loss of the period in which it
becomes receivable.”

3.1 Standards issued but not yet effective
The MCA notified Ind AS 117 on 9 September 2024 to be applicable from 1 April 2024, However, the same
was withdrawn vide notification dated 28 September 2024 wherein the applicability of Ind AS 117 was
made subject to notification of IRDAI. IRDAI has not notified Ind AS 117. Therefore, as of now, Ind AS 117
has been issued but from when it will be applicable is uncertain. The company is evaluating the impact of
the standard on its balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and statement of cash flows,
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

4.1

Cash an.d Eash Enulvalentt

[Amount in lakhs.)

e 31st March, 202

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash on Hand 0.07 0.32

Balances with Banks 6.83 28.65

In Liquid Deposit with Gujarat State Financial

s A 720.54 40.87
|interest Accrued but not due 0.79 0.03

Total T IR .23 _ES.IJ'-'L

* Liquid Deposits includes Liguid Deposits {including Interest accrued) given to related

party.

1st March,

Gujarat State Finam:ial Senrlces

40.87

Interest Accrued but not due on GSF5
Denosit

0.03

lBInk Balance other tl'un {:] :I:-r.wa

Bank Balance other than (a) above

| Deposit

Inter Corporate Deposit * 8657.56 8,688.37
Interest Accrued but not due 321.46 298.38
Fixed Deposit for Bank Guarantee 25.00] 25.00
Total 00402 9,011.75]
5 3

g | 31stMa 02
Gujarat State Financial Services B8,657.56 8,638.37
Interest Accrued but not due on G5FS 315.89 294.44

|Loans

|{A} (i) Loans repayable on demand 25.00 25.00
Total (A) - Gross 25.00 25.00
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 25.00 25.00
Total [A) - Net - -
18)

(i) Secured by Government guarantee 25.00 ES.ML
[ii) Unsecured - -
Total (B) - Gross 25.00 25.00
|Less: Impairment Loss Allowance - -
Total (B) - Net 25.00 25.00
(C) Loans In India

(i) Public Sector 7 =

Total (C) - Gross

Less: Impa lrment Luss Mluwam:e
Total [C) - Net B
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6.1

6.2

6.3

————————

Gujarat Tractor Corporation Limited
(Receivable from Gujarat Industrial
Development Corporation)

Details of Loans, Guarantee and Investment by the Company under Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013

Tomrest [ Aat

I.I_'-'l'_'rr'[r*": jons r I-rl." I.;
Loan 25.00 25.00
25.00 25.00

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance

|Net Loans

years,

Reconciliation of Impairment Allowances

Opening Balance

Company has recognised Lifetime Expected Credit Loss for the loan given to Gujarat Tractor Corporation
Ltd. as per Ind As 109 considering Ageing analysis which indicates such loan is outstanding more than 3

Addition Du rinEtha year

Reversal During the year

Closing Balance

25.00

25.00

Promoter

Details of Loans & Advances Granted to Promoters , Directors, KMPS and Other related parties

Amount in lakhs.

Director

KMPs

Related Parties
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GUIJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

81

Other Financial Assets {Amount in lakhs.)
March,202 315t March,2024
Security Deposits 1.69 1.69
1.69 1.69
Interest Grant Receivable 4453.92 6858.93
1Le;s: Interest Expense Payable (4,453.15)) 0.77 (6,858.66) 0.27
Other Financial Assets 0.08 0.97
TRl o el s e R RS | S 2,50 | WDt = == <+ 2,83
Gujarat State Investments Limited has taken over listed NCDs as per the directions of the Government of Gujarat vide

G.R. date 26th July, 2018. Further State Government has resolved that “The Government of Gujarat will support GSIL
for payment towards Interest on NCD and principal repayment. Energy & Petrochemicals Department will make
necessary budgetary provisions for the same in the budget of relevant years.” In addition to the resolution, Thell
Government of Gujarat extended its support to GSIL vide G.R. dated 17.06.2022 and 14.12.2022 for NCDs serving, the
sald support is a part of Government's commitment under G.R dated 26.07.2018 read with agreement executed
between Government of Gujarat and GSIL on 18.06.2019. GSIL is required to pay Interest on NCD with the support

received in nature of Grant from Government of Gujarat.

9 | Current Tax Assets/(Liability) (Net) (Amount In lakhs.)
Advance Income tax (Met of Provision) 3,455.14 3,5846.20
Less; Provision for Income Tax (1,709.06) (1,653.14)
Tota |0 u7a608] 2,193.06]
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

10 |Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net) {Amount in lakhs.)
i As at - Asat
ALEE 31stMarch,2025 |  31st March,2024
Deferred Tax Asset:
Arising on account of timing difference
- Property, plant & Equipment : Impact of
difference between Tax Depreciation and
Depreciation / amortization charged for the 220 437
financial reporting
- long term employee benefits 3.68 1.03
Total Deferred Tax Asset (A) 5.88 5.40
Deferred Tax Liabilities :
Tax incol expense) during the period
recognised in profit or loss
- Fair Valuation of Investments 69.59 (22.90)
- Others -
Tax income/(expense) during the period (28,205.87) (38,877.01)
recognised in other comprehensive income
Total Deferred Tax Liability (B) 18,136.28) (38,899.91)

[TOTAL i,'i] - iﬂi R i ot~ .

~ (28,13040)]

- |38,894.51

In the absence of any documentary evidence supporting possibility of future taxable
income in foreseeable future which will be utilized for reversal of temporary difference
and it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilized, considering prudence, deferred tax assets on temporary
differences arising from unused tax losses and fair value losses on investments in
subsidiaries and associate entities have not been recognised.

a Re:un clllauun of defemd tax Iiabllities[hlﬂl: {Amount in lakhs.)
| ' R AR
~ 31st March,2024
Tax income/(expense) during the period
recognised in profit or loss (92.92) 22.20
Tax income/{expense) during the period
recognised in other comprehensive income (2,550.83) (38,876.91)
Tax income/(expense) during the period
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 13,222.02 -
on account of change in Tax Rate
Closing balance 10,578.28 (38,854.71)
b [Movements in DTA / (DTL):
Assets : Impact of
difference
between Tax Assets: Impact of | On Account of
St Depreciation and | difference between | Fair Valuation Total
Depreciation / |Long Term Employees| of Equity
amortization Benefit Instruments
charged for the
financial reportin

At 31st March 2023 2.35 2.26 - 4.61
charged/credited:
to Profit or Loss 0.68 0.01 (22.90) -22.21
to other comprehensive income 0.10 (38,877.01) -38,876.91
At 31st March 2024 3.03 2.37 (38,899.91 -38,894.51
charged/credited:
to Profit or Loss 92.51 92.92
to other comprehensive income 10,671.12 10,671.19
At 31st March 2025 (28,136.28) (28,130.40)
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

12 |Other Non Financial Assets ount in Lakhs) |

Prepaid Expenses 2.34 0.03

Tota
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Debt Securities (Amount in lakhs)
. S A "_"'-“',,1-' 1

Unsecured Debt Securities : , .00,

Total 2,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Debt securities in India 2,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Debt securities outside India

Total 2 .00 3,00,000.00

Gujarat State Investments Limited has taken over 60,000 listed NCDs having face value of ® 10,00,000 each, as per the
directions of the Government of Gujarat vide G.R. date 26th July, 2018 w.e.f. appointed date as mentioned in the
scheme of arrangement, i.e. 01st April, 2018. Schedule of Repayment of the same is given as below:

tAmnunt in lakhs)

¥ i, | Matur ‘Rate of
NNCD ISIN No. ; iﬁg 'lgh }ﬁ;g;;;;f
INEDBEQOS031 20,000 2,00,000] 22.03.2028 9.03
Total 20,000 2,00,000
—_—
14 |Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) (Amount in lakhs)
t sed Cost | AtAmortised ¢
Unsecured Loan
Loan From Related Parties (Repayable on
Demand) 17,757.00 22,757.00
Total 17,757.00 22,757.00
Borrowings in India 17,757.00 22,757.00
Borrowings outside India - .
[Total 17,757.00 22,757.00

—_—_____——————————————
Government of Gujarat, in capacity of the Promoter of the company, provides investment
funds in form of interest free loans having specific directions to invest in equity shares of
Group Entities of the company in terms of CIC directions. Investment funds, released as loan
1hv GoG, when received for investment in equity are recognized as financial liabilities. There
exists an obligation, however, the terms and conditions do not specify fixed repayment
schedule. Hence, the same is classified as loan repayable on demand.

Other Financial Llahlliﬁu

Particulars

[Amuunl in- lakhs',i

Other Payables 23.05) ;

Dues to the employees - 4.27

Interest on Grant pwab!t to GDG 178.66 5
16 |P

Provisians For Employee Benefits

Provision for Gratuity 5.05 4.08

Provision for Leave Encashment 9.58 7.95

Total 14.63 12.03

17

Uther Hnn- Flnlm:lal uihlllties

|Duties and Taxes
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

19 |Other Equity (Amount in lakhs)
it [ e A5 At Asat
Particulars : ML 31st March,2025 - 31st March,2024
Other Reserves
Capital Redemption Reserve 5,200.00 5,200.00
Others
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 61,403.31 £1,632.13
Add : Profit for the year 12,529.17 41,020.79
Other Comprehensive Income (0.19) {0.25)
Less : Appropriations
| Dividend Paid (7,507.94) (23,045.20)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve maintained under section
45-IC of RBI Act, 1934 (2,505.83) (8,204.16)
63,918.52 61,403.31
Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans
Balance as per last Financial year -
Adjustments during the year {0.26) (D.35)
_DT#. created as per Defined Benefit Plans /[ Fair Value 0.07 Bio
of investments
Transferred to Retained Earnings {0.19]) - (0.25) -
(b) Gain on equity instrument designated at FYOCI
during the year
Balance as per last Financial year 1,66,363.88 -
Adjustments during the year 20,406.11 2,05,240.89
DTA created on Gain on equity instrument
desiggate d at FVOC 10,671.13 (38,877.01)
Transferred to Retained Earnings 1,97,441.11 - 1,66,363.88
Statutory Reserve
Maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934
Balance as per last Financial year 18,465.59 10,261.43
Add:  Transfer from Retained Earnings 2,505.83 8,204.16
Ot 20,971.42 18,465.59
e e e e =g 2,87,531.05| s [592,51.432.78

Purpose of Reserve
(i} Retain Earnings
Retain earning is the accumulated available profit of the Company carried forward from earlier years. These reserves are

free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

(ii) Reserve u/s 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the "RBI Act, 1934"):

As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934, the company maintains a reserve fund and transfers there in a sum not
less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend
is declared. The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for the purpose specified by
Reserve Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for appropriation of Reserve fund
maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act,1934.

(iii) Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve is created in accordance with the provisions of Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where redemption of preference shares is made out of profits of the company. Whenever such redemption is made, an
amount equal to nominal value of shares redeemed is transfered to a reserve called "Capital Redemption Reserve.

(iv) Other Comprehensive Income
The Company has elected to Fair Value certain equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income and this

balance represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of such equity instruments measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Interest Income i _ (Amount in lakhs)
| Fort : '

‘ended

9 -
E Ll e %
ASELS TTIEd Ea

Interest on Inter Corporate Depos 995.56 1,101.50

Interest on Deposit with Bank 1.64 1.52
Qther Interest Income 57.81 .

~ 110302

Dividend Income
e

Dividend Income

ey | E_'.a_sz

GOG Suppcrt Grant Received for NCD interest Expense 27,276.99 27,585.37
NCD Interest Expense (Refer Note No 22.1) (27,276.99)| {27,585.37)
Profit on Sale of Property, plant & Equipment 0.01 0.01
Excess Provision written back - 0.25

mm !m 0.26/
Gujarat State Investments Limited has taken over listed NCDs as per the directions of the Government of Gujarat vide

G.R. date 26th July, 2018, Further State Government has resolved that “The Government of Gujarat will support GSIL
for payment towards Interest on NCD and principal repayment. Energy & Petrochemicals Department will make
necessary budgetary provisions for the same in the budget of relevant years," In addition to the resolution, The
Government of Gujarat extended it's support to GSIL vide G.R. dated 15.06.2021 and 10.12,2021 for NCDs serving, the
said support is a part of Government’s commitment under G.R dated 26.07.2018 read with ggreement executed
between Government of Gujarat and GSIL on 18.06.2019. GSIL is required to pay Interest on NCD with the support|
received in nature of Grant from Government of Gujarat.

231

|Profit or loss

Net Gain / (Loss) on fair value chanm

Particulars.

(A] Net gain / ﬂnsﬂ Financial instruments at fair value Ihrwgh

On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or

Breakup of Net Gain / {Lnﬁjun Fair Value angﬁ

Particulars

e

,f' _‘_\‘ 95,18 565.26

31st March, 2025

Fair Value Changes
- Realised
- Unrealised

Total SaRgEw

gl o2l | e (95.18) . 565.26

Th e

-




GUIJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Particulars

Sarar_s and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

25.1 Employee Benefits:

A. Defined benefit plans

The following table sets out the funded status of the Gratuity and Leave Encashment and the amounts recognized in financial
statements as at 31st March, 2025, as required by Ind AS 19.

mmumlmznzusﬂlumzmw

| Expenses recognized in the statement of
profit & loss account for the year ended 31st
March, 2025

1 Current service cost

0.43

0.40]

0.66

0.56

2 Interest cost

0.29)

0.23

0.56

0.46

3 Expected return on plan assets

4 Past service cost

E et Value of Remeasurement on the
obligation and plan assets

0.41

0.70]

6 Total expenses

0.71

0.63

1.63

1.72

Il Balance Sheet reconciliation

1 Opening net liability

4.08

3.10

7.95

6.23

2 Expenses as above

0.71

0.63

1.63

1.72

3 Employer contribution

4 Amount Recognized in Other
Comprehensive income

0.26

0.35

5 Benefits Paid

6 Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet

5.05

4.08

5.58

7.95

7 Expected contribution during next 12
months

[lll. Balance Sheet Position

Present Value of Defined Benefit ﬂlﬂgation

5.05

4.08

9.58

7.95

Fair Value of Assets

Net Defined Benefit Liabilities / (Assets)

5.05

4.08

9.58

7.95

IV Bifurcation of Net Liabilities

Current Liabilities

0.25

0.20

0.39

0.34

Non Current Liabilities

4.80

3.88

9.19

7.61

Net Defined Benefit Liabilities / (Assets)

5.05

4.08

9.58

7.95

 Particulars

Vil Actuarial Assumptions

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors, mainly the composition of plan
assets held, assessed risks, historical results of return on plan assets and the Company's policy for management of plan assets.

eave ':a" iment

Ji!

1 Discount Rate 6.80% 7.20% 6.80% 7.20%

2 Rate of return on plan assets - - . .
3 Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

4 Withdrawal Rate 1% to 5% 1% to 5% 1% to 5% 1% to 5%

5 Medical Inflation rate - -

Maturity Profile of defined benefit obligation

e

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the re
constant, would have affected the defin

. [ 202328
Within 12 months of reporting period 0.25 0.20 0.39 0.34
Between 2 to 5 Years 0.75 0.66 1.16 1.11
Between 6 to 10 Years 1.13 0.90 1.76 1.50

f the relevant actuaria
y the amounts sk

AN

O
W

X

siptions, holding other assumptions




GUIJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

unt in lakhs

Particulars.
Sensitivity %
Discount rate varied by 0.5%
Increase +5% 4,78 3.87 9.05 7.50
Decrease -5% 5.33 4.30 10.15 8.43
Salary growth rate varied by 0.5%
Increase +5% 5.08 4.11 10.15 B.44
Decrease -5% 4.85 3.92 9.04 7.49
Withdrawal Rate
Increase + 10% 5.10 4,11 9.61 7.99
Decrease - 10% 5.00 4,04 9.54 7.91

LR
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

26

26.1

26.2

263

Other Expenses {Amwnt in lakhs }
Rent 11.21 11.21
Repairs and Maintenance - 0.25
Power and Fuel 3.27 5.19
Communication Costs 1.59| 0.00|
Printing and Stationery 7.43 6.02
Legal and Professional charges 22.55 20.62
Insurance 0.32 0.61
Rate & Taxes 1.07 1.05
Audit fees a4.72 4.72
CSR Expenses 10.02 3.87
Travelling Expense 0.31 0.33
Contract Expense 20.64 18.26
Miscellaneous Expenses

Payment to Auditor as:

Statutory Audit Fees

Details of Amount spent towards CSR is given below:

Tax Audit Fees
Total 24 4,720
Details of CSR Expenditure (Amount in lakhs.)
= TR
nded .1""{;,;,3@
March, 2025 March, 2024

i) Amount Reguired to be spent by the company during the year 10.02 3.87
i} Amount of expenditure incurred on; s

a. Construction / acquisition of any assets

b. On purpose other than (a) above 10.02 3.87
iii) Shaortfall / (Excess) at the end of year -
iv) Total of previous years shortfall / (Excess) -
v) Hemns for Shurtl’ali MN.A.
Nature of C5R Expenditure {Amuunt In Ialr.hs ]

i) Contribution in Chief Minister Relief Fund

3.87

i) Contribution towards support for Prevention and Management of
Tempummandnbular Juint lITI'u'I.\‘II Ankvlusis
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

27

E:r.:eptiamnl Items

—

Profit on Sale of Investment of Associates

(Amount in lakhs.}

28

& LA
rch, 2025 | a;smat%“ 2024
Eurrent Tax (Refer Note 28.1 b-ek:wl 1, ?CI-B.DG 1,653.14
Deferred Tax -92.92 22.20

Earlier Year

28.1 | A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to

the income before income taxes is summarized below:

Profit as per books (Ind AS)

14,145.35

iount in lakhs.

30,172.36

Tax @ 25.168% (P.Y. 25.168%) 3,560.10 7,593.78
Tax Effect of :

Non deductible expenses 27.76 2.68
Deductible Expense (0.82) (143.31
Deducﬂm under l:hapter Vi (1, 3?? 98) (5,800.01
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

29 [Earnings Per Share

o il

-a ]

Profit attributable to the Equity

Shareholders (€ in Lakhs) "‘ 12,520.17 AL
Basic / Weighted average number of

Equity Shares outstanding during B 10,427.69| 10,427.69
the period (Numbers in Lakhs)

Nominal Value Per Share 10.00 10.00
Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share A/B 1.20 3.93

1 |Government of Gujarat Promoter N.A. MN.A.
2 |Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited Associate 23.42% 35.03%
3 |Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Co. Ltd. Associate 37.84% 37.84%
4 |Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd. Hﬁﬁﬁ?{izr:w N.A. N.A.
13.03.2024)
5 |Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co. Ltd Associate 21.44% 21.44%
6 |Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Ltd. Associate 20.87% 20.87%
7 |Gujarat Industrial Power Co. Ltd. Group Companies N.A. N.A,
8 |Gujarat Lease Financing Ltd. Group Companies N.A. N.A.
g |GSL (India) Limited Group Companies N.A. NLA,
10 |Gujarat State Financial Corporation Group Companies N.A. N.A.
11 |Gujarat State machine tools Company Limited Group Companies N.A. N.A.
12 |Gujarat State Trans Receivers Limited Group Companies N.A. N.A.

ARt enterprises as per Ind As 24,

30.2 |Details of Key Managerial Personnel and transactions with Key Managerial Personnel:

- Shri T Natarajan, 145 (w.e.f. 10.09.2024)

- Shril P Gupta, IAS (upto 10.09.2024)

- Ms. Arti Kanwar, IAS [w.e.f. 10.08.2023)

- Smt. Mona Khandhar, 1AS (From 05.01.2023 to

10.08.2023)
- Ms. Arti Kanwar, IAS (upto 10.08.2023)

- Ms. Ratankanvar H. Gadhavicharan, 185 (w.e.f

07.10.2023)
-Ms. Neena Kumar (w.e.f. 19.03.2024)

-Shri Bhadresh Mehta ( w.e.f 16.05.2022)
- Shri Sanjay S Gavande (upto 04.03.2024)
- Ms, Tanaz Bacha (w.e.f. 04.03.2024)

- Shri Sandip K. Shah

Chairman
Chairman
Managing Director

Managing Director
Director
Director

Women Director
Independent Director
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

The company being state controlled enterprise, it is not required to disclose transactions with other state controlled
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Transaction with the related Parties

(Amount in lakhs.)

— T Natureof | iy
. Farticularst B Transaction S| A0 202253 2023-24
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Co. Ltd. Dividend Income €,032.00 15,079.99
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co. Ltd Dividend Income 5,198.76 9,968.26
Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Ltd. Dividend Income 2,123.12 3,610.07
Government of Gujarat rntErlr::iill;Idend 7,507.94 23,045.20
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited Sale of Shares 1,00,000.00 :
Grant Received 27.276.99 27.585.37
fReceivable in
Government of Gujarat pursuant to Payment
[ payable of Interest
Government of Gujarat Repayment of Loan 5,000.00 13,243.00
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Limited Interest Income 995.56 1,101.50
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Limited STiEE Cfnrpurate 1,55,433.17 46,011.18
Deposit Placed
. By Inter Corporate
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Limited Denosit Matured 1,54,762.11 42,786.90
Consideration
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co. Ltd received in pursusnt N 13,243.14
with Buyback of
shares
Shri Bhadresh Mehta Director Sitting Fees 1.02 0.57
Ms. Neena Kumar Director Sitting Fees 0.59 5
Remuneration
Ms. Tanaz Bacha including all 19.61 142
allowance
Rermuneration
Mr. Sandip K Shah including all 17.49 14.46
allpwance
Remuneration
Mr. Sanjay S. Gavande including all - 14.93
allowance
Outstanding Balances
Amount in lakhs.)
Particilers Nature of As at Asat
Transactions 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Gujarat Industrial Power Co. Ltd. Investment 635.05 574.97
Gujarat Lease Financing Ltd. Investment 64.568 107.58
G5L (India) Limited Investment - -
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Investment 130.70 243.07
Gujarat State machine tools Company Limited Investment - -
Gujarat State Trans Receivers Limited Investment - -
Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd. Investment 3,68,369.21 3,47,963.11
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited Investment 2,01 809.65 3,01,809.65
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co. Ltd Investment 12,843.92 12,843.92 |
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Co. Ltd. Investment 25,237.96 25,237.95
Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Ltd. Investment 17,331.53 17,331.53
Government of Gujarat Grant Receivable 4,453.92 6,858.93
Gujarat State Financial Corporation e l’.‘urpa_:lrate 9,694.78 9,023.71
Depaosit
Government of Gujarat Unsecured Loan 17,757.00 22,757.00
Government of Gujarat Other Liabilities 178.66 -

NS
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31

Segment Reporting
The main business of company is investment activity, hence there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS

108 on "Operating Segments".

Contingent Liabilities

{a)

Income tax matter for A.Y. 2013-14,The AO has raised demand of % 821.92 lakhs. (P.Y. % 821.92 lakhs) The company has
filed appeal before CIT(A). The company believes that the matter will be decided in the favour of the company.

(b)

Income tax matter for A.Y. 2013-14,The AO has raised demand of ® 238.61 lakhs (P.Y. % 238.61 lakhs). The department
has filed appeal before Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat against the order of ITAT. The company believes that the matter
will be decided in the favour of the company.

(c)

Income tax matter for A.Y. 2014-15,The AD has raised demand of % 12.24 lakhs (P.Y. ® 12.24 lakhs). The company has
filed appeal rectification request u/s 154 against the said demand to AO. The company believes that the said demand|
will be deleted after considering the said rectification request.

(d)

Income tax matter for A.Y. 2018-19,The AO has passed the order u/s.143(3) and raised demand of % 34.04 lakhs. (P.Y. %
34.04 lakhs.) The company has filed appeal before CIT(A). The company believes that the matter will be decided in the
favour of the company.

(e)

To comply with SEBI Crircular No SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CR/ ADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October, 2022, the company has
provided bank guarantee amounting to Rs. 25 Lakhs towards Recovery Expenses Fund [REF) with the National Stock
Exchange (NSE) against which the company has created Bank Fixed Deposit of Rs. 25 lakhs which has been disclosed
under Note No 5 "Bank balance”.

(f)

Settlement of certain claims may result in outflow of additional cash than the amount disclosed in the above note as
contingent liabilities owing to interest component on such claim which is indeterminable until actual order Is passed to
this effect for settlement of claim.

33

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Risk Exposure

The Company’s business activities expose it to only one type of financial risk and that is market risk. Market risk is the
risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and their impact on the present/future performance
of a business. The market risks include price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk. The primary price risk for the
company is equity securities price risk i.e. price risk of various investments that could adversely affect the value of the
Company’s financial assets or expected future cash flows.

The Company’s exposure to equity securities except investment in subsidiary and associate companies price risk arises
from investments held by the Company which are classified in the balance sheet as fair value through profit and loss

(FVTPL).

Risk Management Policy

The Company’s senior management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee which is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Management of the Company are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risk is
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The activities are
designed to protect the Company’s financial results and position from financial risks, maintain market risks within the
acceptable parameters while optimizing returns and protect the Company’s financial investments while maximizing

returns.
Sensitivity

The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the equity security prices on the Company's profit or
loss for the period.

Amount in lakhs.

"~ Impac 'ﬂfh!lﬁa%

L | —— i‘%ﬁbanﬂ ; =

As at mﬂ%ﬁi

' ;-Sist'ﬁhrtié!uliglr 1st March, 2024
Tan

41.52 46.28
Equity Security Price - decrease 5% (41.52) (46.28)
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities

Financing arrangement
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at

As at

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Expiring within one year (working capital
demand loan, line of credit and other
facilities)

Expiring beyond one year (working capital
demand loan, line of credit and other
facilities)

Total

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and

undiscounted and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

that are proposed to be settled by delivering cash or other financial asset. The Group’s financial planning has ensured, as far as
possible, that there is sufficient liquidity to meet the liabilities whenever due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group has practiced financial diligence
and syndicated adequate liquidity in all business scenarios.

Further, the Group has also tied-up additional sources of liquidity to meet the liabilities during the respective annual years
which has ensured that the Company has a clean track record with no adverse events pertaining to liquidity risk,

{Amount in Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows
31st March, 2025 Carrying Total Less than Maore than
amount 12 months 12 manths
Neon-derivative financial liabilities
Debt Securities 2,00,000.00 2,00,000.00 - 2,00,000.00
Borrowings 17,757.00 17,757.00 17,757.00 -
Other Financial Liabilities 201.70 201.70 201.70 -
Trade and other payables - - - -
Total 2,17,958.70 1.1?£5=E.'?ﬂ 1?_,953.‘!{} 2,00,000.00
{Amount in Lakhs)
Contractual cash flows
31st March, 2024 Carrying Total Less than . More than
amount 12 months 12 months
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Debt Securities 3,00,000.00 3,00,000.00 1,00,000.00 2,00,000.00
Borrowings 22,757.00 22,757.00 22,757.00 -
Other Financial Liabilities 23.05 23.05 23.05 -
Trade and other payables - - - .
Total 3,22,780.05 3,22,780.05 1,00,023.05 2,22,757.00

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method whereby profit (profit before tax) for the period is adjusted for the
effects of the transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and
payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing and financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

5

Event after reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the

reporting period, the impact of such events gd within the financj.
Balance Sheet date of material size or naela ?




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Capital management

The company defines capital as total equity including issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to
equity holders of the parent (which is the company’s net asset value). The Company monitors capital using a ratio of|
‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities and comprising
debt instruments and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio on balance sheet date was as follows

e T i o

Total liabilities comprising debt instruments and 2,17,757.00 3,22,757.00
borrowings

Less : Cash and cash equivalents 728.23 69.87
Adjusted net debt 2,17,028.77 3,22 687.13
Total equity 3,91 807.96 3,55,709.68
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 55.39% 90.72%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

38

Dues of Micro and small enterprises*

days as at 31st March, 2025,

There are no micro and small enterprises, to which the company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45

(*) Based on the information available with the company regarding the status of the vendors under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act”), the disclosure pursuant to the MSMED Act is as follows:

Particulars

As at As at

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(Amount in Lakhs) {Amount in Lakhs)

( a ) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any suppliers as at the end of accounting year:

(b ) Interest paid during the year

( ¢ ) Amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during accounting year;

( d ) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment;

( e ) Interest acerued and unpaid at the end of the accounting year;
and

{ f) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid

to the small enterprise;

39

regrouping is not material to financial statements,

Previous period figures have been regrouped and or reclassified, whatever necessary. The impact of the such
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40 Scheduled to the Balance Sheet as required in terms of Master Direction - Core Investment Companies

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 updated as on October, 5 2021

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a NBFC

Particulars Amount in Lakhs
Liabilities side Amount Amiint
outstanding overdue
(1) [Loans and advances availed by the non- banking financial
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid :
Debentures : Secured = L
: Unsecured 2,00,000.00 =
Interest Accrued on
{a) _above debentures i
{other than falling
within the meaning of - -
public deposits®)
(b} Deferred Credits - _
(c) Term Loans - =
(d Inter-corporate loans and y X
borrowing
(&) Commercial Paper - -
(f) Public Deposits* - -
(g) Other Loans (spacify nature) 17,757.00 -
* Please see Note 1 below - -
(2) |Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid) : ) ¥
(a) In the form of Unsecured
debentures ) 4
b) In the form of partly secured
debentures i.e. debentures where
there is a shortfall in the value of K %
Security
€] Other public deposits = -
* Please see Note 1 below -
Assets side Amount outstanding

Break-up of Loans and Advances
including bills receivables [other than those included in (4)

below] :

(3

o

(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured

(4) |Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets

T

counting towards asset financing activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals
under sundry debtors ;

(a) Financial lease

(b} Operating lease

(ii} Stock on hire including hire charges
under sundry debtors :

(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(i) Other loans counting towards asset
financing activities

(a) Loans where assets
have been
repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a)
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(5) [Break-up of Investments
|Current Investments
1. uoted
(i) Shares =
(a) Equity z
(b} Preference -
(i) Debentures and Bonds N
(i) Units of mutual funds .
(iv) Government Securities &
[w) Others (please specify)
Inter Corporate
Deposits
2. [Unguoted
(i) Shares =
{a) Equity =
(b) Preference =
(ii) Debentures and Bonds e
(iii) Units of mutual funds .
(iv) Government Securities =
(v Cthers (please specify)
Long Term investm
1.[Quoted
(i) Share
a) Equity 56,243.84
(b) Preference =
(ii) Debentures and Bonds =
(iii) Units of mutual funds -
{iv) Government Securities -
(v) Others (please specify)
2.|unguoted
(i) Shares
[a) Equity 5,70,178.87
(b} Preference -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -
(i) Units of mutual funds -
(iv) Government Securities -
(v Others (please specify)
i)

(6

——

Please see Note 2 below

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above :

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured

Total

Reclated Parties **

{a) _|subsidiaries

(b)
same group

Companies in the

(c) Other related parties

Other than related parties

Total
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(7)

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and
unguoted) :
Please see note 3 below

Category Market Value / | Book Value
Break up or fair (MNet of
valueor NAV | Provisions) |
1. Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries - -
(b) Companies in the same group 12,44,596.36 6,26,422.71
() Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parties - -
Total 12,44,596.36|  6,26,422.71
** As per Ind Accounting Standard of MCA (Please see Note 3)
(B) |Derivatives
-> |Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
(i) The notional principal of swap agreements NIL MIL
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to
(if) fulfil th SN MIL MIL
ulfil their obligations under the agreements
(i) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering NIL NIL
into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps $ NIL NIL
(v) The fair value of the swap book @ NIL NIL

==

=

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market risk and the accounting policies adopted
for recording the swaps should also be disclosed.

5 Examples of concentration could be exposures to particular industries or swaps with highly geared companies.

@ If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or commitments, the fair value would be the estimated amount
that the applicable NBFC would receive or pay to terminate the swap agreements as on the balance sheet date.

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives
5r. No. Particulars Amount
(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken NIL
during the year (instrument- wise)
(i) Motional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as
on 31st March (instrument-wise) NIL
{iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and|
not "highly effective® (instrument-wise) NIL
(iv) Mark-to-market wvalue of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding
and not "highly effective” (instrument-wise) NIl

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Qualitative Disclosure: | Nil

Quantitative Disclosures:

Interest Rate
Sr.No. Particular Currency Derivatives Dkt

{]] Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

For hedging [ NIL
(i) Marked to Market Positions [1]

a) Asset (4) NIL NIL

b) Liability (-) NIL NIL
(i} Credit Exposure [2] NIL NIL
(iv) Unhedged Exposures NIL NIL

Page 54 of 68




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

(8) [Other information

Particulars Amount
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties R
(b) Other than related parties 25.00
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets =
(a) Related parties =
(b) Other than related parties =
i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -

MNotes :

1. [As defined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.

2. |Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

3. |All Ind A5 and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as alsp
assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up [ fair value /
NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or

current in (5) above.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Annexure-ll

Data on Pledged Securities
Name of the NBFC Lender :- Gujarat State Investments Limited
PAN : AABCGA649M
Date of Reporting-31st March 2025
Share holding Information

M, NA MNA MNA MNA NA
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of board of directors of
Signature To Notes "1" To "63" Gujarat State Investments Limited
For, J.T. Shah & Co
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration Number : 1096 ‘,J_‘

ptzn-

Managg Director Director
(A K Panchal) o0
Partner 'l
|(Membership No. : 116848) Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar
Date: 27.05.2025 Date : 27.05.2025
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FORM NO.AOC.1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs) (Amount in Lakhs)
1. SL No. 1

2. Name of the subsidiary NA
3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's reporting NA
period

INR

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries.

5. Share capital -
6. Reserves & surplus -
7. Total assets -
8. Total Liabilities -
9. Investments -
10. Turnover -
11. Profit before taxation -
12. Provision for taxation -
13. Profit after taxation -
14. Proposed Dividend -
15. % of shareholding -
Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations NA
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. NA
Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures (Amount in Lakhs.)
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures
. . Gujarat State
Gujarat State Gujarat Narmada ore . .
o Fertilizers & Gujarat Alkalies &
Petroleum Valley Fertilizers & . . i
. .. . .. Chemical Chemical Limited
Corporation Limited* | Chemicals Limited ..
Co.Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2025
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
No. (In Full Figure) 3,767,910,736 33,227,546 150,799,905 15,329,373
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 201,809.65 13,531.53 25,237.96 17,331.53
Extend of Holding % (Refer Note 3) 23.42% 21.44% 37.84% 20.87%




3. Description of how there is significant influence

Control of more than
twenty percent of total
share capital

Control of more than
twenty percent of
total share capital

Control of more
than twenty
percent of total
share capital

Control of more than
twenty percent of total
share capital

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA NA NA NA

5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 247,603.16 183,848.00 459,320.08 118,324.13
6. Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation (including Other Comprehensive Income) 13,350.57 12,780.81 (16,228.44) (6,349.70)

i. Not Considered in Consolidation

Notes: 1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. - None

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. - None

3. The company has derived extent of holding on the basis of Shares held by the Group.

4. In case of GSPC, the parent company has considered unaudited Financial Statement certified by the Management of the GSPC for the purpose of consolidation.




J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Board of Directors

Gujarat State Investments limited,
Ahmedabad

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of GUJARAT STATE
INVESTMENT LIMITED (“hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), and its Associates which
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2025, and the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of cash flows and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the con solidated
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies (Hereinafter referrag to
as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanztions given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information require by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accou nting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”), of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31* March 2025, and its
consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), its consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur respansibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical res ponsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
Ind AS Financial statements,.

201/202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
Novrengpura, Ahmedabad-380009
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Emphasis of Matter
4. We have determined the Emphasis matters described below:
sr. Name of EOM
No. Components
1 Gujarat Alkalies i. We draw attention to Note no 44(a) to the consolidated annual
and Chemicals financial statements regarding issuance of Compulsory
Limited (GACL- Convertible Debentures (CCDs) by GACL NALCO Alkalies &
Associate Chemicals Private Limited (GNAL-N) to the tune ofRs.50,000.00
Company) lakhs. Company has entered into an arrangement for

backstopping support towards repayment of principal and coupon
of Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs) amounting to
Rs.30,000.00 lakhs (Previous year NIL) in proportion to the
shareholding of Company in GNAL{60%).

Fair value of deemed. Investment is Rs.24,596.58 lakhs (As at
March 31, 2024 NIL). Fair value of Financial Obligation is
Rs.21,786.74 Lakhs (As at March 31, 2024 NIL) and fair value of
Financial Guarantee Obligation is Rs.3,233. 98 Lakhs (As at March
31, 2024 NIL) against the said CCDs as at March 31, 2025.

ii. Following Emphasis of matter para's are included in audit report
of JV

we draw your attention to Note No. 44(b) to the consolidated
annual financial results which states that Joint Venture Company,
GACL-NALCO Alkalies & Chemicals Private Limited has
experienced a technical problem subsequent to the Balance Sheet
date 31st March, 2025, with its manufacturing operations since
22nd April, 2025 at its production facility. The joint venture
Company is expecting the resumption of production activities
with in short period of time.

This event is classified as a non-adjusting event under Ind AS 10 -
Events after the Reporting Period and does not affect the reported
financial results for the year ended 3 | st March 2025.

ii. We draw your attention to Note No. 5.2 to the consolidated
annual financial results which states that GACL-NALCO Alkalies &
Chemicals Private Limited (V) has conducted impairment review
of its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) in accordance with Ind
AS 36 - "Impairment of Assets” to determine the recoverable
amount of PPE as at 31st March, 2025. Based on the assessment

201/202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009,
Phone: 264 444 20, 264 444 30, 264 444 40, 265 604 40 Page 2 of 73




J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAMTS

Sr. Name of

No. Components o

performed, the management of JV has concluded that no
impairment provision is required, as the recoverable amount of
the assets exceeds their carrying amount.

Our opinion on consolidated financial statement is not modified
in respect of these matters.

2. | Gujarat Narmada We draw attention to note 43(B) to the consolidated financial
Valley Fertilizers & statements regarding a matter relating to demand of Rs. 21,370

Chemicals Limited Crores (including interest and penalty computed till November 30,
(GNFC-  Associate 2021) on the Company by Department of Telecommunications
Company) (DoT) towards Veery Small Aperture Terminal ('VSAT') and Internet

Service Provider ('ISP') Licenses fee relating to earlier years. Based
on the legal assessment in consultation with Senior Advocates of
the said demand, the Company is of the view that no provision is
required to be made at this point of time in respect of above matter.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Key Audit Matters

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. Name of How our audit addressed the Key
No. | Components By S Muhtae Audit Matter
1. | Gujarat State | Sale of Investments in Associates | Principal Audit Procedures
Investments | (Unquoted) QOur audit procedures in relation to
Limited (Refer note 3 (A)(a), 7 & 30 to the | the sale and valuation of investments
(Holding standalone financial statements). included, among others:
Company) Investments in Equity and other
Securities Instruments (Unquoted) |¢ We assessed the Company's
aggregate a significant amount of internal controls over investment
the Company's total assets as at recording, valuation, and sales,
March 31, 2025. including cost determination and
gain [loss recognition.

2017202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009
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(Unquoted) at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income and
its investment m other Securities
Instruments (Unquoted) at fair
value through Profit and Loss as at
the Balance Sheet date.

b) Examination of

c)

Sr. Name of How our audit addressed the
No. | Components ey AERE Muttor Audit Matter o
The Company measures its|s We sampled significant sale
investrents Associates at Cost as transactions, including  the
per compliance of IND AS. Associate Company investment,
verifying proceeds, tracing cost of
During the financial year ended acquisition, and recalculating
March 31, 2025, the Company gains/ losses for accuracy and
undertook significant sales of its completeness.
investment portfolio of Associate
Company amounting to X1,000 |« We reviewed valuation policies,
crores. This represents a substantial independently verified quoted
portion of its total investment prices, and evaluated
portfolio stood on 1* day of F.Y. of management's  models and
¥ 12385.09 crores. assumptions for unguoted/illiquid
investments, including sensitivity
Accordingly, the company has analysis,
recognised loss on sale of
investment of associates amounting ¢  Assessed the completeness of
to %. 463.17 Crores as an exception recording of all sale transactions.
item.
Our opinion is not modified in respect
of above matters.
2 Gujarat Valuation of investments | Principal Audit Procedures
Alkalies and | (Unquoted) Our audit procedures included:
Chemicals (Refer Note No.6 and 37.9.1to the | I) Evaluated and tested the
Limited consolidated financial statements) | methodology adopted by the
(GACL- Investments in Equity and other | Company with respect to the
Associate Securities Instruments (Unguoted) | valuation of Investments in Equity and
Company) aggregate a significant amount of | other Securities instruments
the Company's total assets as at | (unquoted), inter alia controls around:
March 31, 2025. a) aperiodic review undertaken by
management, of the risks of the
The Company measures its valuation approach/
investments in Equity Instruments methodology;

unobservable
inputs used by valuer;

selection and
evaluation of external

competence
valuer

2017202, Laliva Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
Mavrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009
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SHAH & CO.

Sr.
No.

Name of
Components

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAMNTS

Key Audit Matter

Fair wvalue is determined using
valuation approach / methodology
for which significant inputs are
unobservable inputs (Level 3
inputs).

The  wvaluation  approach /
methodology adopted by the
management is based on valuation
techniques used by external
valuers. Valuers used multiple
approaches to value investments
which involves significant
judgement as regards the methods
and input used by them.

How our audit addressed the Key
Audit Matter

d)

when the valuer is selected by
Company;

When the investment is made
jointly of some Companies
promoted by Government of
Gujarat Companies, then the
valuation may be wundertaken
jointly by Companies or valuation
may be done by
company. In such cases, we have
relied on the valuation reports
provided to us by management.

investee

Conclusion:
Based on the procedures described
above, we did not identify any

m
m

treatment,

the
and
and

aterial exceptions to
anagement's assertions

presentation

disclosure of the subject matter in
standalone financial statements

Gujarat
Alkalies
Chemicals
Limited
(GACL-
Associate
Company)

and

Litigations and Claims

(Refer Note No. 43 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements)
Litigation and claims are pending
with multiple tax and regulatory
authorities and there are claims
from  vendors/suppliers  and
employees which have not been
acknowledged as debt by the
Company.,

In the normal course of business,
financial interests or exposures may
arise from pending legal/regulatory
proceedings and from above
referred claims not acknowledged
as debt by the company. Whether a

Our audit procedures included the

fo

llowing:

Understood Management's internal
instructions, process and control for
determining and estimating the tax
litigations, other litigations and claims
and its appropriate accounting and/or
disclosure.

Di

scussed pending matters with the

Company’s personnel with respect to
status of cases of litigation and claims.
Assessed management's conclusions

th

rough understanding precedents

set in similar cases, reviewed the

re

commendations of the internal

committee specially formed by the

2017202, Lalito Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-38000%
Phone: 264 444 20, 264 444 30, 264 444 40, 265 604 40
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J. T.

Sr. Name of How our audit addressed the Key
No. | Components REYAIR Niter Audit Matter
claim needs to be recognized as | management, placed reliance upon
liability or disclosed as a contingent | the expert opinions, wherever
liability in the Standalone Financial | obtained by the management.
Statements or 1s considered as
remote, is dependent on a number | Conclusion:
of significant assumptions and | We have assessed the adequacy and
judgments made by  the | appropriateness of  recognition,
management. The amounts | measurement, presentation and
involved are potentially significant | disclosure of the Contingent liabilities
and determining in the Standalone  Financial
the amount, if any, to be recognized | Statements.
or disclosed m the financial
statements, 1s inherently | Our opinion is not modified in respect
subjective. of above matters.
We have considered Litigations and
claims as Key Audit Matter because
the estimates on which these
amounts are based involve a
significant degree of management
judgment, including accounting
estimates that involves high
estimation uncertainty.
4 Gujarat Recognition and measurement of Dur audit procedures included the
Narmada Urea Subsidy Income: following:
Valley The Urea Subsidy Income is| s Assessed the Company’s revenue
Fertilizers & | recognized and measured by the recognition policy for Urea
Chemicals Company in accordance with Subsidy Income.
Limited notification/  circular/  policies
(GNFC- issued by the Department of Understood, evaluated and
Associate Fertilizers, Government of India. tested, on a sample basis, the
Company) design and operating
During the year ended March 31, effectiveness of key internal
2025, the Company has recognized controls over recognition and
Urea Subsidy Income of £ 1,829.89 measurement of Urea Subsidy
Crores and has outstanding Urea Income.
subsidy receivables of % 163.48
Crores. Reviewed the relevant regulatory
pronouncement in respect of Urea

2017202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,

Mavrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009
Phone: 264 444 20, 264 444 30, 264 444 40, 265 604 40
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No.

Name of
Components

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key
Audit Matter

The measurement of Urea Subsidy
Income involves application of
relevant regulatory
pronouncements and notifications,
understanding of applicable energy
norms, and management estimates
/ judgements including in respect of
escalation / de-escalation in the
price of the inputs, etc. for the year.
The recognised subsidy income may
deviate on account of revision /
changes in such interpretation,
estimates and judgements, arising

from  notification by  the
Department of Fertilizers.
Accordingly,  recognition  and

measurement of subsidy income is
determined to be a key audit matter
for our audit of consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidy Income and verified, on a
sample basis, the claims filed by
the Company along-with
underlying accounting evidence in
respect of such income.

* Tested calculations for Urea
Subsidy Income and reviewed
estimates for escalation / de-
escalation by comparing with
actual production cost relevant for
measurement of subsidy amount
including final adjustment related
to earlier years.

* Reviewed follow-ups made by the
Company with the Department of
Fertilizers, Government of India
and management assessment of
recoverability of aged balances.

o Tested the collections made
during the year as well as
subsequent period against such
subsidy income recognized by the
Company.

Assessed the appropriateness of
disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of
Urea Subsidy Income.

Gujarat
Narmada
Valley
Fertilizers &
Chemicals
Limited
(GNFC-
Associate

Valuation of Inventories, including
Stores and Spares

The Company has total inventory of
% 1,257.21 Crores which comprises
of raw material inventory % 362.97
Crores, work-in-progress inventory
X 8149 Crores, finished goods

Our audit procedures included the

following:

* Reviewed the management policy
for physical verification and the
documents related to
management’s physical count
procedure actually followed during
the year.

2017202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Sr. Name of Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key
No. | Components Audit Matter
Company) inventory ® 143.65 Crores, trading | « Understood the management
inventory %. 2.24 Crores and stores process for assessment of value in
and spares inventory %X 666.86 use/ net realisable value of various
Crores (including coal inventory of % class of inventories and making
193.50 Crores and provision for provision for excess inventory.
excess inventory of X 43.61 Crores)
as at March 31, 2025, Reviewed the management's
judgement applied in estimating
The Company has created the above the value of excess inventory for
mentioned provision of ¥ 43.61 stores & spares, taking into
Crores for excess inventory of stores consideration management
and spares based on physical assessment of the present and
verification and on evaluation of its future condition of the inventory.
usability including for aged items.
Performed substantive audit
Accordingly, appropriateness of the procedures that included review of
estimates used to identify the working prepared by the
valuation of inventories, including management for wvaluation of
stores and spares is determined to inventories and observed that
be a key audit matter for our audit appropriate allocation of fixed cost
of consolidated financial and variable cost is done in respect
statements. of Finished Goods and Work in
Progress which is in lines with
prevailing accounting standards.
Performed Physical verification of
inventories as at March 31, 2025. Our
procedures did not identify any
material exceptions.
6. | Gujarat Evaluation of uncertain tax | Our audit procedures included the
Marmada demand positions and other legal | following:
Valley litigations
Fertilizers & | The Company has material | #+ Obtained details of completed tax
Chemicals uncertain tax demand positions assessments and demands as at 31
Limited including matters under dispute March 2025  from  the
(GNFC- which involves significant judgment management.
Associate to determine the possible outcome
Company) of these disputes and significant Inquired with the management
open legal proceedings under including in- house legal experts.

2017202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple
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Sr. Name of How our audit addressed the Key
Key Audi
No. | Components YR My Audit Matter
arbitration and courts for various | « Reviewed the minutes of the
matters with its contractors / meetings and those charged with
vendors and in Government governance, and correspondences
departments, continuing from between the Company and the
earlier years which are part of external legal experts and other
Contingent Liability. evidences to corroborate
Due to complexity involved in these management  assessment  in
litigation matters, management’s respect of disputed tax matters.
judgement regarding recognition
and measurement of provisions for | ® Assessed the  management’s
these legal proceedings s position through discussions with
inherently uncertain and might the in-house legal expert and
change over time as the outcomes external legal opinions obtained by
of the legal cases are determined. the Company (where considered
necessary) on both, the probability
of success in the aforesaid cases,
and the magnitude of any potential
loss.
Discussed with the management on
the development in the litigations
during the year ended 31 March 2025
and  required  provision for
contingencies have been made during
the Financial Year 2024-25.
Our opinion is not modified in respect
of above matters.
7. | Gujarat State ke sfere bt and Principal Audit Procedures:
e
Fertilizer and :i e PROpSIty, P Our audit Procedure included:
Chemical ) 2 } : .| ® Evaluated the management's
The Group has discontinued its :
Limited : various viable proposals,
operations at Fiber & Polymer unit : :
(GSFC- o i : impairment calculations, assessing
\ due to non-viability of its products.
Associate : the net recoverable value the
The carrying value of the assets of : .
Company) ‘ : currently discontinued units used
the Fiber & Polymer unit as on e e st i &
March 31, 2025 works out to| " : TN dfmn 3 4
%4,891.45 Lakhs and X128.21 Lakhs i L e i
; Including comparing them to the
respectively. :
latest circle rates of the land, and
testing the underlying calculations.

201/202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple,
Mavrangpura, Ahmedobod- 380009
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sr. Name of How our audit addressed the Ke
No. | Components SV AT Nt et Audit Matter i
We have considered this issue to be | Based on audit procedures, we found
a key audit matter because the | management's assessment in
analysis performed by management | determining the carrying value of the
requires the use of complex | property, plant, and equipment of
estimates and judgments regarding | Fiber and Polymer unit to be
the future earnings performances / | reasonable.
recoverable amount of the
currently discontinued units to | Referto Note 48(i) to the consolidated
which the aforementioned assets | financial statements.
belong.

8. | Gujarat State | Assessment of implications of Principal Audit Procedures:
Fertilizer and | Government policies/notifications Our audit Procedure included:
fihent::a' °"drr‘°5"m°" n:;fﬂsuhsidv FEVENUE | o Understood and evaluated the

mi and its recoverability: - :
(GSFC- During the year, the Group has ::fz:tr:U:::ﬁtestedﬂ:he ﬂi::,:zi
Associate recognised subsidy  revenue established by the management in
Company) amduu:;ing to %3,73,336.12 Lakh; recognition of subsidy revenue and

an e aggregate amount o i
subsidy receivable as at March 31, :f;:::;::ii?;:memmm 3
2025 is %1,08,747.44 Lakhs.
e * Evaluated the management's

:’:e am;"::::: suhs:d\a‘m;?:le Ti assessment regarding reasonable

e a receiva r oF ‘G ith th
signiﬁfant to the consolidated ::E ;t:mn d'rtinnT:i:‘: p:iﬁe d i:
financial statements. the notifications/policies. We also
i g ia s & Hioas it reviewed the calculations of urea

on ince i il . &
recognition of subsidy revenue and :::E:;T mcnn}i' - E::I;T;Z:
the assessment of recoverability of adjustments as per relevant policy
the related subsidy receivables is parameters in this regard,
subject to significant judgments of
the management. The areas of
subjectivity and judgment include | ® We assessed the reasonableness
interpretation and satisfaction of | recoverability  of  subsidy
conditions  specified in the | receivable by reviewing the
notifications / policies in the | Management’s  analysis  and
estimation of timing and amount of |  INformation used to determine the
recognition of subsidy revenue, | recoverability  of  subsidy
likelihood of recoverability and receivable, aging of receivables
2014202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Jain Temple

Mavrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Sr. Name of How our audit addressed the Key
No. | Components HEY AN Matach Audit Matter
allowance if any in relation to the and historical collection trends and
outstanding subsidy receivables. evaluated adequacy of disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements.

Based on the above procedures
performed, the  management's
assessment of implications of
government notifications/policies on
recognition of subsidy revenue and its
recoverability were considered to be
reasonable.

9. | Gujarat State | Accuracy of recognition, | Principal Audit Procedures:
Fertilizer and | measurement, presentation and | Our audit Procedure:

Chemical disclosures of revenues and other [ » Focused on transactions occurring

Limited related balances in view of within proximity of the year end in

(GSFC- adoption of Ind AS 115 "Revenue the Fertilizer segment, obtaining

Associate from Contracts with Customers" evidence to  support the

Company) The Group primarily manufactures appropriate timing of revenue
and sells a number of fertilizer and recognition based on terms and
chemical products to its customers, conditions set out in sales
mainly through its own distribution contracts, delivery documents and
network. dealers’ confirmation.

Sales contracts specifically w.r.t Bill
and Hold transaction contains
constructive obligation for transfer
of control to the buyer.

Based on the above procedures
performed, we found management’s
assessment in  recognizing the
revenue for Bill & Hold transactions

As per the terms of the contract to | are to be reasonable.
the buyer. As per the terms of the
contract with the customers, the
group used to recognize the sale
based on the invoicing and
considering the transfer of control
and other criteria set out in para
B81 of Ind AS 115.

Refer Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder’s Information and other information in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Holding
Company’s annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and as may be legally advised.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charges with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS financial

statements

7. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive Income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes of equity of the Group
including its associates and jointly controlled entities in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

8. In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group and of its Associates and Joint Ventures tg 8ntingeas a going concern,

201/202, Lalita Complex, 352/3, Rasala Marg, Nr. Join Temple,
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are also
responsible for overseeing the Group financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group have adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of Group to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions ause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or the
business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities include in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion

12. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
including in the consolidated Ind AS financial statement of which we are independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication,

Other Matters

15. The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of net profit of £47,816.48 Lakhs and
share of other comprehensive loss of % 44,263.24 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2025, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of four associates, whose financial
statements and other financial information have not been audited by us.

* We did not audit the financial statements of three (3) associates. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports, which include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph, a
Key Audit Matter paragraph, and an Other Matter paragraph, have been furnished to us by the
Management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

amounts and disclosures included in respect of these associates, and our report under sub-section
(3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 in so far as it relates to these associates, is based solely
on the reports of such other auditors.

= The consolidated financial statements also include the financial statements of one (1) associate,
whose financial statements are unaudited. These unaudited financial statements have been certified
by the Management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this associate, and our report under sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it
relates to this associate, is based solely on these management-certified financial statements.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. With respect to matters specified in paragraph 3 (xi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 ("the Order” or “CARQ"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub- section (11)
of section 143 of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
CARO reports issued by the respective auditors of companies included in the consolidated financial
statements, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report as under:

17. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statement.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of consolidated
Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash flows and the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts
maintained for the purpose of preparation of Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

e. In pursuance to the Notification No. G.5.R 463 (E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to disqualification of
Directors, is not applicable to the Company, being a Government Company.
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f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and operating
effectiveness of such control refer to our separate report in "Annexure -A" which is based on the
auditor’s reports of the Holding Company and as obtained from its associate companies incorporated
in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting of those companies, for reason stated
therein.

g As per notification number G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, section 197 of the Act regarding remuneration to directors is not applicable to the Company,
since it is a Government Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

18. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a) the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31'
March 2025 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, Refer Note 35 to the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements;

b) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

¢} There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its associate companies.

d) (i) The respective management of the Holding Company has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Holding Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), which the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The respective Management of the Holding Company has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b} under “clause 4(d)”, contain
any material misstatement.

e) The interim/final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid during the year is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable. The Board of Directors of the Group have
proposed interim/final dividend for the year which is approved in the case of interim dividend by the
board of directors and subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting in the case of final dividend. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section
123 of the Act, as applicable.

f) The company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which does not
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. Consequently, we are unable to report
whether the audit trail facility has been operated and maintained throughout the year for all
transactions recorded in the software, or if the audit trail feature has been tampered with, or the
audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention,

g) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Com panies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 ("the Order”/“CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, based on the Consolidated reports issued by the auditors of the associate companies
included in the consolidated financial statements, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we
have relied upon such consolidated reports and the information and explanations provided to us by
the management. Based on our review, no material qualifications or adverse remarks have been
noted except mentioned in “Annexure - B". Our report under the said paragra phs is based solely on
such reports of the respective auditors.

For, J. T. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regd. No. 109616W)

Place: Ahmedabad
Date; 27/05/2025

(A. K. Panchal)
£ (M No.: 116848)
UDIN:25116848BMKYUE7977
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNEXURE to Independent Auditor's Report on Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025

List of entities included in the Financial Statement Associate Entities:
1. Gujarat Alkalies and Chemicals Limited (20.87%)

2. Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizer & Chemicals Limited {21.44%)
3. Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited (37.84%)

4. Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited {35.03%)
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENT LIMITED

"Annexure A" TO THE IN DEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The annexure referred to in paragraph 18(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENT LIMIT ED for the year ended 31* Ma rch, 2025, we report that:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENT
LIMITED ("The Company”) and its associates (as per reports of their respective auditors) as of 31* March,
2025 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors, the company have maintained in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective board of directors of the Company, its associates are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by these entities considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Sta ndards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operags




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENT LIMITED

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS fina ncial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compa ny's
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to fraud
or error may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143 (3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting in so far as ii relates to separate financial statements of
four (4) Associate which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of companies incorporated in India,

For, ). T. Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regd. No. 109616W)
Place: Ahmedabad e
Date: 27/05/2025

8 (A. K. Panchal)
e Partner
= (M No.: 116848)
UDIN: 25116848BMKYUE7977
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"Annexure -B" To Independent Auditor's Report

Holding Company
/ Subsidiary/ Clause Number of the CARO
:: Name CiN Associate [/ Joint report which is qualified or
i Venture adverse
GSPC:
g [ouermtSIR | 112320961197956C003281 | Associates of GSIL -
Petroleum Corporation
Limited
GACL:
2 | NALCO Alkalis & L24100G)2015PTC085247 ”mgfa"’ e la){A),; ii(b); xix;
Chemicals Limited
GNFC
Gujarat Narmada 3(iMc) ; 3(ii)(b);
Valley Fertilizers & L24110GJ1976PLCO02903 | Associates of GSIL 3 (iii)(c) & (d)
Chemicals Limited s[vii)(b)
(GNFC)
3 The CARC report has not
been issued by its auditor till
Gujarat‘Green Associates IV of the date of this report and
Revolution Company Us3020GJ1998PLCO35039 GNEC the management has
Limited furnished the certified
unaudited financial
information.
iﬁt sists Unaudited Financial
4 L99999GJ1962PLC001121 | Associates of GSIL Statement and hence no
Fertilizers & Chemicals
Umited comment.
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For, ). T. Shah & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regd. No.: 109616W)

P e

(A. K. Panchal)
Partner
(M. No. ; 116848)

Place : Ahmedabad i
Date: 27.05.2025

CIN : Us4990GJ19885GC010307
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)
MNote As at As at
SrNo P lars
il No. | 31stMarch,2025 |  31stMarch, 2024
ASSETS
1 |Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 44 728,23 69.87
Bank Balances other than above 4B 9,004.02 9,011.75
Loans 5 - -
Investments accounted using the equity methods 64 10,82,390.91 12,38,508.65
Investments 6B 3,69,199.65 3,48,888.72
Other Financial assets 7 2.54 293
2 |Non-Financial Assets
Current tax Assets (Net) 8 1,746.08 2,193.06
Property, Plant and Equipment 10 7.31 9.81
Other non -financial assets 11 2.35 0.03
Total Assets 14,63,081.09 15,98 83
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 |Financial Llabilitles
Debt Securities 12 2,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 13 17,757.00 22,757.00
Other financial liabilities 14 201.70 23.05
2 |Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 15 14.63 12.03
Deferred tax liabilities 9 28,130.40 38,894.51
Other non-financial liabilities 16 153 2.94
3 |EaQuiTy
Equity Share capital 17 1,04,276.91 1,04,276.91
Other Equity 13 11,12,698.92 11,32,718.39
Total Liabilities And Equity 14,63,081.09 15,98 684.83
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
As per our report attached

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Gujarat State Investments Limited

Asitfpartin

Mandging Director Director
!
Wﬁ”‘ .
Company Secretary Chief Financlal Officer

Place : Gandhinagar
Date :27.05.2025
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CIN : UHEI!HGJIHBBSEC{IIHB&?
NSOLID. DSTA ENT OF PROFIT & F ENDED M 25
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Note For the Year For the Year
5r. No Particulars No. ended ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Revenue From Operations
i.|Interest income 15 1,055.00 1,103.02
ii.| Dividend Income 20 13.92 13.22
iii. | Net gain on fair value changes 23 - 565.26
(1)| Total Revenue from operations
{1} Other Income 21 0.01 0.26
{im) Total Income (1+11) 1,068.93 1,681.76
Expenses
v.|Finance Costs 22 - 175
vi.[Net loss on fair value changes 23 95.18 -
vil.|[Employee Benefits Expenses 24 70.40 B4.43
vili.{ Depreciation , amortization and impairment 10 275 4.41
bt |Others expenses 25 109.14 97.12
{Iv) Total Expenses (IV) 277.46 167.71
(Vl|Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax - iv) 791.47 1,514.04
(V1)|Exceptional items 26 46,317.11 1,20,883.17
(VI {Profit/{loss) before tax (V-vi) (45,525.54) (1,19,369.12)
Share of profit/[loss) of joint ventures and associates accounted for using
the equity method (Net of Tax) 47.816.48 1,03,008.23
(Vill)|Tax Expense 27
(1) Current Tax 1,709.06 1,653.14
(i) Adjustments of tax for earlier years 0.04 0.30
{iiif) Deferred Tax (92.92) 22.20
1,616.18 1,675.64
() Prefit / (loss) for the period from continuing operations{v) 1-¥iii ) 674,66 (18,036.54)
(%) |Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations -
(X1)| Tax Expense of discontinued operations - -
(X1){Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations{After tax) (X -X1) z .
{X11) Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+Xi1) 674.66 (18,036.54)
(¥XIv)| Other Comprehensive Income
(&) (i) frems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 20,405.95 2,05,240.54
(ii) Share of OCI in Associate and JV {Ind A5) (44,263.24) 87,050.73
{iif) Income tax relating to these items 10,671.19 (38,876.91)
Subtotal () (13,186.06) 2,53,414.35
(8] (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
Other Comprehensive Income [A+B) (13,186.06) 2,53,414.35
Total Comprehensive Income for the period [XII+XIV) (Comprising Profit
v (Loss) and other Comprehensive Income for the period) (12,511.40) 2,35,377.82
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 67466 (18,036.54)
Non-Centrolling Interest - -
Other comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owmers of the Company (13,186.06) 2,53,414.35
Non-Controlling Interest - .
Total comprehensive income attributable te:
Owners of the Company {12,511.40) 2,35,377.82
Nen-Controlling Interest - -
(V1) [Earnings per equity share 8
Basic & Diluted 0.06 {1.73)
See accompanying Notes to the Financlal Statements
As per our report attached
For, ). T. Shah & Co ﬁ:j_'_j__-a For and on behalf of board of directors of
Chartered Accountants e Gujarat State Investments Limited 'yf
(Firm Regd. No.: 109616\ — ¥ i
o Managing Director Director
(A K P nchal) r 2 N
Partner .
(M. No. : 116848) Company ry Chief Financlal Officer
Flace : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar
Date: 27.05.2025 Date :27.05.2025 Pm 23 of 73




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CIN : UB4590G)19885GC010307

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES (Audited) (Audited)
Met Profit Before Tax & Exceptional Item 791.47 1,514.04
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation and Amortization 2.75 441
Net Loss on Sale of Assets (0.01) (0.01)
Net loss (Gain] on fair value changes 95.18 (565.26)
Operating profit before working capital changes 889.39 953.18
Movements in worki ital
(Increase)/decrease in Other Financial Assets 0.38 0.88
(Increase)/decrease in Other Assets (2.32) 0.10
Payment of Interest on Debt Securities (29,682.49) (27,510.00)
Dividend Received from Associates 13,353.88 28,658.32
Increase/[decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 178.37 6.91
Increasef(decrease) in Other Liabilities 119 433
Movement in Other bank balances .73 (3,264.65)
Direct Tax Paid | Net of Refunds ) (1,262.11) (3,307.42)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (16,515.96) (4,458.35)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase of Property, plant & Equipment {0.25) {1.89)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.02 -
(Proceeds)/ Receipt from Investments 1,00,000.00 13,211.68
Net Cash from Investing Activities 99,0999.77 13,209.79
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES
Government Support Received to pay Interest on
Debt Securities 29,682.49 27,510.00
Proceeds/ Payment from Debt Securities (1,00,000.00)| 5
Proceeds from /(Repayment of) Loans (net) (5,000.00) (13,243.00)
Dividend Paid (7.507.94) (23,045.20)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (82,825.45) (8,778.20)
Net Increase / | Decrease ) in Cash And Cash
Equivalents (A+B+C) 658.36 (26.76)
Cash And Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 69.87 96.62
Cash And Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 728.23 69.87
Net Cash generated from Operating activity is determined after adjusting the following:
— Year ended Year ended
31st March,2025 | 31st March,2024
Interest Received 1,055.00 1,103.02
Dividend Received 13,367.80 13.22
Interest Paid - 1.75
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2024 Net Cash Flow Non Cash Flow | March 31, 2025
Debt Securities 3,00,000.00 (1,00,000.00) - 2,00,000.00
Borrowing (Other than Debt Securitias) 22,757.00 (5,000.00) - 17,757.00
Total 3,2!;35?&0 (1,05,000.00 - 2,17,757.00
Particulars March 31, 2023 Met Cash Flow Non Cash Flow | March 31, 2024
Debt Securities 3,00,000.00 - - 3,00,000.00
Borrowing (Other than Debt Securities) 36,000.00 (13,243.00) - 22,757.00
Total 3,36,000.00 13,243.00 = 3,22,757.00
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GUJARAT

STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Compaonents of Cash and Cash Equivalents and a R
reported in Balance sheet :

econciliation of the amounts in the statement of cash flow with equivalent items

|Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Cash on Hand 0.07 0.32

Cheques / Draft on Hand Z
—— - 7

Fixed depaosit with original maturity of less than 3 720.54 P

maonths

Bank Balances 6.83 28.65

Balances in Bank Overdraft / Cash Credit

Others 0.79 0.03

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Closing Balance as per

Statement of Cash Flow 72823 §3.82

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Closing Balance as per

Balance Sheet 728.23 o387

Notes:

=

The above cash flow statement has been
"Statement of Cash Flow",

prepared as per "Indirect Method”

set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7)

(]

Figures reported in Brackets indicate Cash Outflow,

Ly

Previous year figures have been regrouped or recasted

whenever necessary to confirm to current year's figures.

-

Since Company is 3 Investment Company,
activities & interest / dividend earned fram said
Operating activities",

Purchase & sale of

investments have been considered as part of * Cash flow from Investing

investments during the year have been considered as part of * Cash flow from

See accompanying Motes to the Financial Statements
As per our report attached

|For, J. T. Shah & Co

Chartered Accountants
[(Firm Regd. No.: 109616W)

(A. K. Panchal)
Partner
(M. No. : 116848)

Place : Ahmedabad
Date: 27.05.2025

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Gujarat State Investments Limited

Attty |

Mana;ingﬁl.ramr Director

Yk o

Company Secretary
Place : Gandhinagar
Date :27.05.2025

Chief Financial Officer
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CIN : UB4990G)19835GC010307
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Equity Share Capital (Refer Note No. 17)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at
Earticular March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1,04,276.91 1,04,276.91

Changes in Equity Share capital due to prior period errors

Restated Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1,04,276.91 1,04,276.91

Changes during the year - .

Balance at the reporting period 1,04,276.91 1 .91
1ﬂther Equity (Refer Note Note 18)

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus
Capital Reserve fund u/s 45- Other
Particulars Retained IC (1) Of Reserve | Comprehensive Total
Redemption
Reserve e SenkOf [Rtome
India Act, 1934

Balance as at April 01, 2024* 5,200.00 | 9,42,688.92 18,465.61 1,66,363.88 11,32,718.40
Profit for the period {43,588.59) 31,077.23 (12,511.35)
Transfer from Retained Earnings - 2,505.83 2,505.83
Others - - {0.19) (0.19)
Changes in parents ownership interest in h )
subsidiary
Dividend Paid (7,507.94) (7,507.94)
Transfer to Special Reserves = (2,505.83) (2,505.83)
Items of the OCI for the year, net of tax C
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit . (0.19) ] 0.19 -~
plans
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5,200.00 | 8,89,086.37 20,971.44 1,97,441.11 | 11,12,698.92
Balance as at April 01, 2023* 520000 | 9,04,92431 10,261.45 - 9,20,385.76
Profit for the period - 69,014.21 - 1,66,363.88 2,35,378.08
Transfer tof from Retained Earnings - - 8,204.16 8,204.16
Others - - (0.25) (0.25)
Changes in parents ownership interest in
subsidiary = ; E ; 2
Dividend Paid - {23,045.20) - - (23,045.20)
Transfer to Special Reserves - (8,204.15) - - (8,204.185)
Items of the OCI for the year, net of tax = ) 5 - 8
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit - (0.25) ] 0.25 4
plans
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,200.00 | 9,42,688.92 18,465.61 1,66,363.88 | 11,32,718.40

*There is no changes in Other Equity due to prior period errors.

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

1) Capital Redemption Reserve - As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its
own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred
to capital redemption reserve, The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2) Retained Earnings - This reserve represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the group as on the balance shest date.

3) Reserve Fund u/s 45 IC (1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 - As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934, the company
maintains a reserve fund and transfers there in a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared, The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund
except for the purpose specified by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpase for
appropriation of Reserve fund maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1984,




GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

For, ). T. Shah & Co For and on behalf of board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Gujarat State Investments Limited

(Firm Regd. No.: 109616W)

Managing Director Director
WO ppacs
(A. K. Panchal) Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Partner
(M. No. : 116848)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar
Date: 27.05.2025 Date : 27.05.2025
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

zi'

Reporting Entity

Gujarat State Investment Limited (the ‘Company’/the ‘Parent’/'GSIL’) is a Company domiciled in India, with its
registered office situated at 6th Floor, H K House, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad, 380009, Gujarat, India. The
Company has been incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily involved
in investment activity. The company has been registered as a Core Investments Company (CIC) Specified NBFC
with the Reserve Bank of India in terms of the regulation governing Non-Banking Financial Companies.

Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements:

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] as amended from time to time, as well as Guidelines issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India for Oil and Gas Producing Activities (Ind AS). The Group presents its financial
statements to comply with Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 which provides general
instructions for the preparation of financial statements of a non-banking financial company (NBFC to com ply
with Ind AS) and the requirements of Ind AS. As per para 60 of Ind AS 1, an entity shall present current and
non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities, as separate classifications in its balance sheet
except when a presentation based on liquidity provides information that is reliable and more relevant,
Hence, the assets and liabilities are classified as financial, non-financial as opposed to current, non-current
classification as required by Division | and Division Il of Schedule |11,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except whereby a newly issued Accounting Standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy
hither to.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting under historical cost
convention in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India and the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 including Indian Accounting Standards notified there under, except for the
following:

» certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value; and

* defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

* Assets held for sale ~-measured at Fair Value less Cost to Sell

Use of estimates and judgements

The presentation of the consolidated financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which requires
the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates and
assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of
consolidated financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future-pegedsaffected.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assum ptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements
is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line
item in the consolidated financial statements.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

- Current / Deferred tax expense

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations, Key Actuarial Assumptions
- Provisions and contingencies

- Expected credit loss for receivables

- Estimation of Oil and Gas reserves

- Impairment

- Valuation of Inventory

- Going Concern

- Fair Value of Assets held for sale

- useful life of Property, plant and Equipments

A. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
The consolidated financial statement of GSIL represents consolidation of its consolidated financial statements
with subsidiary and associates. The proportion of ownership interest in subsidiary and associate is as follows:

Direct Control or
ownership ownership interest
Relationship | Control through
Name of Entity withGSIL | Subsidiary (indirect interest as on ason
¥ 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Control)
Gujarat Narmada Valley
Associat iate . 3
Fertilizers Co. Ltd 2 Asoe cLAn% 21.44%
Gujarat State Fertilizers : f
ac t ; ;
& Chemicals Co. Ltd. Associate Associate 37.84% 37.84%
Gujarat Alkalies &
] ' Associate Associate 20.87% 20.87%
Chemicals Ltd.
Gujarat State Petroleum
Associat iat i i
Corporation (GSPC) ociate Associate 23.42% 35.03%
Associates

Associates are entities over which the group has significant influence but not control. This is generally the case
where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost. 5
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
MNotes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(i)

(i}

Egquity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
and loss, and the group's share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive
income,

Dividends received or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

When the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in these entities. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been aligned
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

The carrying amounts of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the
policy.

Changes in ownership interests

The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

When the group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value with the change in
carrying amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
assoclate or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
Income In respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit and loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated statement of profit and loss where appropriate.

‘.
oy
< BAD
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

3.

Material Accounting policies
Material Accounting Policies
Financial Instruments
al

1.

A,

Financial Assets:

i)

Classification:

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* Those measured at amortized cost and

* Those measured at fair value through profit or loss.

* Those measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions

and is not designated as at FVTPL and FVCOI:

e the asset Is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

* the contractual terms of a financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of Principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition except if and in
the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments and measures at its fair value.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Financial assets at FVTPL Net gains including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains including any interest or dividend income, are
Financial assets at FVOCI recognized through other comprehensive income.,

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The amortized
Financial assets at |cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
amortized cost foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognized in profit or loss.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Equity Instrument:

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company
decides to classify the Equity instruments either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company
makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made an
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value

changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

iii.) De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

b. Financial Liabilities:
(i)  Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at Historical cost. Government of Gujarat,
in capacity of the Promoter of the company, provides investment funds in form
of interest free loans having specific directions to invest in equity shares of Group
Entities of the company in terms of CIC directions. Investment fu nds, released
as loan by GoG, when received for investment in equity are recognized as
financial liabilities. There exist an obligation, however, the terms and conditions do
not specify that whether the loan is repayable on demand and also fixed repayment
schedule is not specified.

(i) De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the
cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial
liability with modified terms is recognised in the profit or loss.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Property, Plant and Equipment

l.

Recognition and Measurement
ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Useful lives have been determined in accordance with Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit
or loss,

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property
and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which are in line with
as specified under schedule Il of the Act.

Useful life of the assets are as under:
1. Vehicle — 8 years

2. Furniture & Fixtures — 10 years

3. Office Equipment — 10 years

4. Computers — 3 years

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such asset is ready for its
intended use. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant
and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset
is derecognised.

Lease

The company’s lease arrangements primarily consist of lease for office building. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with
a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are

expensed as the related service is provided.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans
are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the
related services are rendered by employees.

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount using market yields at the end of reporting
period on government bonds.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the Asset
Ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any
minimum funding requirements.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the
Other Comprehensive Income.

E.  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. A contingent asset is
neither recognized nor disclosed if inflow of economic benefit is probable.

F.  Revenue Recognition
Income from dividend is accounted as and when such dividend has been declared and company’s
right to receive payment is established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit
will flow to the company and the amount of income can be red reliably. Interest income is
recognized on time proportionate basis.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

G. Income Tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss in respective year.

{i) Current Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only
if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended
to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates will be recognized only to the extent that, it is probable that:

» the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and
= taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on net basis or their tax assists and
liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

H.  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits
with banks and other short term highly liquid Investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original
maturity is three months or less.
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit
attributable to equity shareholders (after adjustment for diluted earnings) by average number of
weighted equity shares outstanding during the year plus potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from Operating Activities are reported using the indirect method whereby the profit
before tax is adjusted for the effect of the transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past and future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated. Company being an Investment Company,
Purchase & sale of investments have been considered as part of "Cash flow from Investing
activities” & interest / dividend earned from said investments during the year have been
considered as part of "Cash flow from Operating activities".

Other Income

“Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance”

Government of Gujarat Support and Assistances received are accounted in accordance with Ind AS
20. Government support and assistance takes many forms varying both in the nature of the
assistance given and in the conditions which are usually attached to it. Government support is
recognized through profit and loss when it is established that the support is for the purpose other
than capital expenditure and the related revenue expenditure has been adjusted against
government support/ grant for the purpose of disclosure in statement of profit and loss. A
government support/grant that becomes receivable in terms of government resolution is
recognized in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable.”.

Standards issued but not yet effective
The MCA notified Ind AS 117 on 9 September 2024 to be applicable from 1 April 2024. However,
the same was withdrawn vide notification dated 28 September 2024 wherein the applicability of
Ind AS 117 was made subject to notification of IRDAI IRDAI has not notified Ind AS 117. Therefore,
as of now, Ind AS 117 has been issued but from when it will be applicable is uncertain. The company
is evaluating the impact of the standard on its balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and
statement of cash flows. ;
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

4a

Cash and Bank Balance

4.A.1

4B

4.8.1

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
Pa lars
o 31t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Cash on Hand 0.07 0.32
Balances with Banks 6.83 28.65
In Liguid Deposit with Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd * 720.54 40.87
Interest accrued but not due 0.79 0.03
Total 728.23 69.87
* Liquid Deposits includes Liquid Deposits (including interest accrued) given to related party.

* ICD includes ICD given to related party. (Rs. In Lakhs)

Name of Related Party 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Gujarat State Financial Services 720.54 40.87
Interest accrued but not due 0.79 0.03
Bank Balances other than (a) above (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
Particula
gttt 31st March, 2025 | 315t March, 2024

Other bank balances

Margin Money deposit (Bank Guarantee [ letter of credit) having original 2%.00 25,00
maturity of more than 12 months . i
Site restoration fund - Deposits with banks -(Refer Note No. .b) -

With original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months ** BA5T.50 8,858.37
Interest accrued but not due 321.46 298.38
Total 9,004.02 9,011.75
* ICD includes ICD given to related party. (Rs. In Lakhs)|

Name of Related Party 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Gujarat State Financial Services 8,657.56 B 688.37
Interest accrued but not due 315.89 294,44

* Refer note 45 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Loans (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
LT 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
il Term Loans
(i) Loan Repayable on demand
iii) Others * 25.00 25.00
Total (A) - Gross 25.00 25.00
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 25.00 25,00
Total (A) - Net - -
B) (i) Secured 25.00 25.00
i) Unsecured - -
Total (B) - Gross 25.00 25.00
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 25.00 25.00
Total (B) - Net - -
C) Loans In India = -
(i) Public Sector 25.00 25.00
Total (C) - Gross 25.00 25.00
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 25.00 25.00
Total [C) - Net - -
Total - -

* Refer Note 43 for Related Party Transactions

Reconciliation of Impairment Allowances

Opening Balance

Company has recognised Lifetime Expected Credit Loss for the
per Ind As 109 considering Ageing analysis which indicates such |

(Rs. In Lakhs;

Addition During the year

Reversal During the year

Closing Balance

25.00

Details of Loans & Advances Granted to Promoters , Directors, KMPS and Other related
partles

loan given to Gujarat Tractor Corporation Ltd. as
0an is outstanding more than 3 years.

Director

EMPs

Related Parties

- -

Details of Loans, Guarantee and Investment by the Company under Section 186 of Companles Act, 2013
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(Rs. In Lakhs)|
= Nature of  msat msat
Ty Transactions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Gujarat Tractor Corporation Limited
|(Receivable from Gujarat Industrial Loan 25.00 25.00
Development Carporation)
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 25.00 25.00
Net Loans R, ; e
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

6.A Investments in Equity accounted investees

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Investments in quoted equity shares of equity accounted investees

33,227,546 (31st March, 2023 : 33,227,546) fully paid up equity shares of 2,82,819.45 2,75,237.40
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co. Ltd of % 10 each

150,799,905 (31st March, 2023 : 150,799,905) fully paid up equity shares of 4,21,272.69 4,43,533.12
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Co. Ltd of % 2 each

15,329,373 (31st March, 2023 : 15,329,373) fully paid up equity shares of 88,206.27 96,679.08
Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Co. Ltd of ® 10 each

Investments in quoted equity shares of equity accounted investees 7,92,298.40 8,15,449.61
Investments in unquoted equity shares of equity accounted investees

3,767,910,736 (31st March, 2023 : 5,264,789,694) fully paid up equity 2,90,092.51 4,23,059.04

shares of Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd of % 10 each

Investments in unquoted equity shares of equity accounted investees 2,90,092.51 4,23,059.04
Total Investments in equity shares of equity accounted investees 10,82,390.91 12,38,508.65
Less: Impairment Recognised

Total Investments In equity shares of equity accounted Investees 10,82,390.91 12,38,508.65
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2025

Current tax assets (Net) (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
I
farticulies 315t March, 2025 | 315t March, 2024
Advance Income tax {Net) 3,455.14 3,846.20
Provision for Tax (1,709.06) (1,653,14)
Total 1,746.08 2,193.06

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

 Asat As St
perculars 315t March,2025 | 315t March, 2024

Deferred Tax Asser:

Arising on account of timing difference
- Property, plant & Equipment : Impact o
difference between Tax Depreciation and

Depreciation / amortization charged for the 220 el
financial reporting
- long term employee benefits 3.68 3.03
Total Deferred Tax Asset (a) 5.88 5.40
Deferred Tax Liabilities :
Tax inmmeﬁexpensej during the period
recognised in profit or loss
- Fair Valuation of Investments £9.59 (22.90)
- Others -
Tax rncomef[expense] during the period (28,205.87) (38,877.01)
recognised in other comprehensive income
Total Deferred Tax Liability (B) (28,136.28]| 38,899.91)
TOTAL (A) - (B) e ) e (20.130.40)] S (38,894.51)
In the absence of any documentary evidence supporting possibility of future taxable

income in foreseeable future which will be utilized for reversal of temporary difference
and it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilized, considering prudence, deferred tax assets an temporary
differences arising from unused tax losses and fair value losses on investments in
subsidiaries and associate entities have not been recognised,

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities(Net): (Rs. In Lakhs)
din e I Iy -:_—-i.'.-.' e— l—"-""‘-ﬂ'.f"?ﬁk et il § 3t o=
" Particulars TOTRL el g ey o T [
garic - o e Y .:dlti'ﬁﬁth,!ﬂ!!:' -:'EIHHII?&I%

Tax income/(expense) during the period (92.92) 22.20

recognised in profit or loss

Tax income/(expense) during the periud1
recognised in other comprehensive income

(2,550.83) (38,876.91)

Tax income//(expense) during the period
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 13,222.02
on account of change in Tax Rate e

Closing balance 10,578.28 (38,854.71)
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Movements in DTA J(DTL) :
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Assets : Impact of
difference between
Tax Depreciation | Assets: Impactof | On Account of
and difference between| Fair Valuation of
rarHaa Depreciation / Long Term Equity g
amortization Employees Benefit Instruments
charged for the
financial reporting
At 315t March 2023 2.35 2.26 . 4.61
charged/credited:
to Profit or Loss 0.68 0.01 (22.90) (22.21)
to other comprehensive income 0.10 (38,877.01) (38,876.91)
At 31st March 2024 3.03 2.37 {38,899,91) (38,894,51)
charged/credited:
te Profit or Loss 0.65 (0.24) 9251 92.92
to other comprehensive income 0.07 10,671.12 10,671.19
At 315t March 2025 3.68 2,20 (28,136.28)] (28,130.40)
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
11 0ther Non Financial Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March,2025 As at 31st March,2024
Other Advances
Prepaid Expenses 2.35 0.03
Total 2.35 0.03
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Debt Securities (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at Asat
acuiars 315t March,2025 | 315t March,2024

Mon Convertible Debentures 2,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Total 2,00,000.00 3.00,000.00
Debt securities in India 2,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Debt securities outside India - -
Total 2,00,000.00 3,00,000.00

Gujarat State Investments Limited has taken over 20,000 (P.Y. 30,000) listed NCDs

having face value of ® 10,00,000 each, as per the directions of the Government of

Gujarat vide G.R. date 26th July, 2018 w.e.f. appointed date a5 mentioned in the

scheme of arrangement, i.e. 01st April, 2018.Schedule of Repayment of the same

is given as below:

12.1 |Security wise Classification of Non Convertible Debenture as on 31.03.2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

NCD ISIN No. Total no of NCDs Total Value Maturity Date | Rate of Interest
INEDBEQORD31 20,000 2,00,000 22.03.2028 9.03
Total| 20,000 2,00,000

(S
oy
i A
: AHMEDABAD
e i
- -
'G'a_ .6}'
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

13 |Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Ty 315t March, 2025 315t March,2024
At Amortised Cost At Amortised Cost
a)Loans repayable on demand -
iiffrom related parties® 17,757.00 22,757.00
Total (A) 17,757.00 22,757.00
Bormwiﬂgs in India 17,757.00 22,757.00
Bnm:rwingg outside India =
Total (B) 17.757.00 22,757.00

*Government of Gujarat, in capacity of the Promoter of the company, provides investment funds in form of interest
free loans having specific directions to invest in equity shares of Group Entities of the company in terms of CIC
directions. Investment funds, released as loan by GoG, when received for investment in equity are recognized as
financial liabilities. There exist an obligation, however, the terms and conditions do not specify fixed repayment
i i d,
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consoclidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

14 |Other Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 3 IS arat
!imm:.mzs_-__mmum__
Dues to Employees - 4.27
Interest Payable to GOG 178.66 -
Other Expenses Payable 23.04 18.78
Total 201.70 23.05
15 |Provisions (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
s 3stMarch2025 | 315t March2024
Provisions For Employee Ben
Provision for Leave Encashment 9.58 7.95
Provision for Gratuity 5.05 4.08
Total 14.63 12.03
*For movement in provision related to employee benefits refer note no. 31
16 |Other Non- Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at

Duties and Taxes

1.53

31st March, 2025 31st March,2024

As at

2.94

Total

1.53

zl“
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

QOther Equity (Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March,2025 As at 31st March,2024
Cagihl Egggmgm Reserve 5,200.00 5,200.00
[Retained Earnings
Balance as per last Financial year 9,42,688.92 9,04,924.31
Add : Profit for the year {43,588.59) 69,014.21
Others
Remeasurement of post employment benefit
obligation, net of tax (0.19) (0.25)
Less : Appropriations
Dividend Paid (7,507.94) {23,045.20)
Tax on Dividend - £
Transfer to Statutory Reserve maintained under
section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934 12,505.83) 18,204.15)
8,89,086.37 9,42,688.92
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
Balance as per last Financial year - =
Amount Transfer from Profit & Loss (0.26) (0.35)
Other Adjustment
DTA created as per Defined Benefit Plans 0.07 0.10
Transfer to Retained earnings (0.19) (D.25) =
(b) Gain on equity instrument designated at FVOCI
during the year
Balance as per last Financial year 1,66,363.88
Adjustments during the year 20,406.25 2,05,240.89
DTA created as per Defined Benefit Plans 10,671.13 (38,877.01)
Transferred to Retained Earnings 1,97,441.11 1,66,363.88
Statutory Reserve
Maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934
Balance as per last Financial year 18,465.61 10,261.45
Add: Transfer during the year 2,505.83 8,204.16
20,971.44 18,465.61
Total 11,12,698.92 '11,32,718.39

|Purpose of Reserve
(1) Retain Earnings

Retain earning is the accumulated available profit of the Company carried forward from earlier years. These reserves are
free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

(il) Reserve u/s 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of Indla Act, 1934 (the “RBI Act, 1934"):

As required by section 45-1C of the RBI Act 1934, the company maintains a reserve fund and transfers there in a sum not
less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend
is declared. The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for the purpose specified by
Reserve Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for appropriation of Reserve fund
maintained under section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934,

(iii) Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve is created in accordance with the provisions of Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where redemption of preference shares is made out of profits of the company. Whenever such redemption is made, an|
amount equal to nominal value of shares redeemed is transfered to a reserve called “Capital Redemption Reserve,

(iv) Other Comprehensive Income
The Company has elected to Fair Value certain equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income and this
balance represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of such equity instruments measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

19 [interest Income (Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Partl
Siiadars 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits 955.56 1,026.38
Interest on Deposit with Bank 1.64 76.64
Other interest Income 57.81 -
Total 1055.00] 1,103.02
—
20 |Dividend (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particilars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Dividend Income 13.92 13.22
Total | L= — 13.92 13.22
21 |Other Income (Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Parti
S 31st March, 2025 31t March, 2024
GOG Support Grant Received for NCD interest Expense 27276.99 27,585.37
Less: NCD Interest Expense*® (27,276.99) {27,585.37)
Profit on Sale of Investments 0.01 -
Other Income 0.00 0.26
Total 0.01 0.26

* Gujarat State Investments Limited has taken over listed NCDs as per the directions of the Government of Gujarat
vide G.R. date 26th July, 2018. Further State Government has resolved that "The Government of Gujarat will support
G5IL for payment towards Interest on NCD and principal repayment. Energy & Petrochemicals Department will make
necessary budgetary provisions for the same in the budget of relevant years.” In addition to the resolution, The
Government of Gujarat extended its support to GSIL vide G.R. dated 12.06.2024 and 12.12.2024 for NCDs serving, the
said support is a part of Government's commitment under G.R dated 26.07.2018 read with agreement executed
between Government of Gujarat and GSIL on 18.06.2019. GSIL is required to pay Interest on NCD with the support
received in nature of Grant from Government of Gujarat.

22 |Finance Costs (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Interest expense 0.00 1.75]
23 |Net loss on fair value changes (Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
AL 315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024

(A) Net (gain) / loss on Financial Instruments at fair value

through Profit or loss
On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit

or Loss (95.18) 565.26
Total 95.18 565.26
“

23.1 |Breakup of Net Loss on Fair Value Changes (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Fair Value Changes
- Realised
- Unrealised (95.18) 565.26

Total
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Employee Benefits Expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
salaries and wages 61.07 57.88
Contribution to provident and other funds 9.32 6.55
Total 70.40 64.43
Other Expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
rti
Resciia 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Rent, Rates and Tanes** 12.28 12.26
Repairs and Maintenance 0.00 0.25
Power and Fuel 3.27 5.19
Communication Costs 1,59 {0.00)
Printing and Stationery 7.43 6.02
Legal and Professional charges 22.55 20.62
Insurance 0.32 0.61
Audit fees 4.72 4.72
CSR Expenses 10.02 3.87
Travelling Expense 0.31 0.33
Contract Expense 20.64 18.26
Miscellaneous Expenses 26.00 25.00
Total 109.14 87.12
Details of CSR Expenditure
{Rs. In I.nlchs]
T, e o | Forthevearended
-4 = g ¥ - - i -I."_-AM g "'.'f"‘-n-_ T N#i“ r Gl
=% e | B erhaely *g
i) Amount Required to be spent by the company during the year 10.02 3.87
if} Amount of expenditure incurred on: -
a. Construction / acquisition of any assets
b. On purpose other than (a) above 10.02 3.87
lii) Shortfall / (Excess) at the end of year -
iv) Total of previous years shortfall / (Excess) -
v) Reasons for Shortfall N.A, N.A.
oLl o e i e T e P e TR 10,02 | At 3,87
Nature of CSR Expend iture 1Fls. ln L:Rhs]
P A TR Er_ | Fortheyearended |
i :q,v;_:,....:. £ o Pllﬁﬂllllna*-.-- o gt _m: ;F"&lﬂm;% ﬁ'
Details of Amount spent towards CSR is given below:
i) Contribution in Chief Minister Relief Fund 3.87
i) Contribution towards support for Prevention and Management
of Temgnruman d:hufar Joint [TMI) hnll_cgrosu 10.02 -
Total s T s D e P RRTe d s Vs BT ST 0.0 | e T R 3 A7
The company has not made any contribution to the trust controlled by the company in related to CSR Expenditure.
|Exceptional Items (Rs. In Lakhs)
s For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Profit on Sale of Investment (12,524.07)
Changes in parents ownership interest in subsidiary & Associates® 46317.10| 1,33,407.23
Total 46,317.10 1,20,883.17
* Exceptional item represents (profit) / lo
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27 |Tax Expense (Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
el 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Current Tax 1,709.06 1,653.14
Adjustrment of Earlier Year Taxes 0.04 0.30
Deferred Tax (92.92) 22.20
Tatal 1,616.18 1,675.64
27.1 | A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to
the income before income taxes is summarized below:
____(Rs.In Lakhs)
Particulars 202425 BN | B 1027 70
Profit as per books (Ind AS) 674.66 (18,036.54)
Tax @ 25.168% (P.Y. 25.168%) 169.80 (4,539.44)
Tax Effect of :
Mon deductible expenses 3,418.06 12,135.90
Deductible Expense (0.82) (143.31)
Deduction under Chapter VI (1,877.98) __(5.800.01)
Total Tax Expense e o ~ 1,709.06]  1653.14
28 |Earnings Per Share (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particaloss For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March 2024
Profit attributable to the Equity Shareholders (%) 674.66 (18,036.54)
Basic / Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding
during the Year 1,04,27,69,070 1,04,27,69,070
Nominal Value per Share (%) 10.00 10.00
Basig_’ailuted Earnings per Share (%) 0.06 (1.73)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

MNote 29
Contingent labilities & Contingent Assets *

(a) Income tax matter for A.Y, 2013-14,The AO has raised demand of X 821.92 lakhs (P.Y.: % 821.92 lakhs). The company has
filed appeal before CIT(A). The com pany believes that the matter will be decided in the favour of the company,

{b) Income tax matter for AY, 2013-14,The AO has raised demand of % 227.48 lakhs (P.Y.:=® 22748 lakhs). The department
has filed appeal before Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat against the order of ITAT. The company believes that the matter will be
decided in the favour of the company.

Ic} Income tax matter for ALY, 2014-15,The AO has raised demand of % 12.24 lakhs (P.Y.: % 12.24 lakhs). The company has filed
appeal rectification request u/s 154 against the said demand to AD. The company believes that the said demand will be
deleted after considering the said rectification request.

(d) Income tax matter for ALY, 2018-19,The AO has passed the order u/s.143(3) and raised demand of % 34.04 lakhs (PY.: %
34.04 |akhs). The company has filed appeal before CIT(A). The company believes that the matter will be decided in the favour
of the company.

“Bank balance",

(f) Settlement of certain claims may result in outflow of additional cash than the amount disclosed in the above note as
contingent liabilities owing to interest component on such claim which is indeterminable until order is passed to this effect
for settlement of claim,

Note 30
Commitments® (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024

Estimated Amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital
accounts and not provided for

i. In respect of Joint Arrangements - -

ii. In respect of Others - g

Investment Commitments - %

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining on revenue accounts - -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note 31
Employee Benefits:
A. Defined benefit plans
The following table sets out the funded status of the Gratuity and Leave Encashment Plan and the amounts recognized in
Group’s consolidated financial statements as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st Marc h, 2024 as required by Ind AS 19,
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Gratuity Leave Encashment
Particular {Unfunded) (Unfunded)
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
| Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & loss account for
the year ended 31st March, 2025
1 Current service cost 0.43 0.40 0.66 0.56
2 Interest cost 0.29 0.23 0.56 0.46
3 Expected return on plan assets i o = =
4 Past service cost T = : -
5 Net Value of Remeasurement on the obligation and plan assets - . 0.41 0.70
6 Total expenses 0.71 0.63 1.63 1.72
Il Balance Sheet reconciliation
1 Gpeniﬂg net liability 4.08 3.10 7.95 6.23
2 Expenses as above 0.71 0.63 1.63 1.72
3 Employer contribution - - - -
4 Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive income 0.26 0.35 - -
5 Benefits Paid
& Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet 5.05 4.08 9.58 7.95
7 Expected contribution during next 12 months
lll. Balance Sheet Position
Present Value of Defined Benefit ﬂ@gatiun 5.05 4.08 9.58 7.95
Fair Value of Assets - - - -
Net Defined Benefit Liabilities / (Assets) 5.05 4.08 9.58 7.95
IV Bifurcation of Net Liabilities
Current Liabilities 0.25 0.20 0.39 0.34
Non Current Liabilities 4.80 3.88 9.19 7.61
Net Defined Benefit Liabilities / (Assets) 5.05 4,08 9.58 7.95
V Maturity Profile of defined benefit obligation
Within 12 months of reporting period 0.25 0.20 0.39 0.34
Between 2 to 5 Years 0.75 0.66 1.16 1.11
Between 6 to 10 Years 1.13 0.90 1.76 1.50
VI Actuarial Assumptions
1 Discount Rate 6.80% 7.20% 6.80% 7.200%
2 Rate of return on plan assets - - - -
3 Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
4 Withdrawal Rate 1% to 5% 1% to 5% 1% to5% | 1%to5%
5 Medical Inflation rate - -

=
5 AHMEDABAD| o
9
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Py
N/
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Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Gratuity (Unfunded Leave Encashment
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Rl Asat31st | Asat3ist | Asat3ist | Asat3ist

March'2025 | March'2024 | March'2025 | March'2024
Sensitivity %
Discount rate varied by 0.5%
Increase +5% 4.78 3.87 9.05 7.50
Decrease -5% 5.33 4.30 10.15 8.43
Salary growth rate varied by 0.5%
Increase +5% 5.08 4.11 10.15 B.44
Decrease -5% 4.85 3.92 9.04 7.49
Withdrawal rate varied by 10%
Increase + 10% 5.10 4.11 9.61 7.99
Decrease - 10% 5.00 4.04 9.54 7.91
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Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 32
Related party disclosure
As per the Indian Accounting Standard-24 on “Related Party Disclosures”, list of related parties identified of the Company are
as follows.
(Rs. In Lakhs)
e e TeRrionshP | 31stMarch,2025 | 315t wiarchy 2024
1 |Government of Gujarat Promoter N.A, N.A,
- Gujarat State Petroleumn Corporation Limited Associate e 35.03%
3 Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Co. Ltd. Associate I7BA% 37.84%
- ' 4 Associate (till 13.03.2024)
4 Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd, & Group Compay (w.e.f.
13.03.2024) M.A, N.A,
5 Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co.Ltd Associate 21.44% 21.44%
6 |Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Ltd. Associate 20.87% 20.87%
7 |Gujarat Industrial Power Co. Ltd. Group Companies N.A. N.A.
8 Gujarat Lease Financing Ltd. Group Companies N.A, N.A,
9 G5L (India) Limited Group Companies N.A, N.A.
10 |Gujarat State Financial Corporation Group Companies N.A, MN.A.
11 Gujarat State machine tools Company
Limited Group Companies N.A. N.A.
12 |Gujarat State Trans Receivers Limited Group Companies N.A. N.A.
324 The company being state controlled en terprise, it is not required to disclose transactions with other state controlled
" |enterprises as per Ind As 24.
32.2 |Details of Key Managerial Personnel and transactions with Key Managerial Personnel:
- 5hri T Natarajan, 1A5 (w.e.f. 10.09.2024) Chairman
- 5hriJ P Gupta, IAS (upto 10.09.2024) Chairman
- Ms. Arti Kanwar, IAS (w.e.f. 10.08.2023) Managing Director
- Smt. Mona Khandhar, IAS
F Managing Director
(From 05.01.2023 to 10.08.2023) e
= Ms. Arti Kanwar, 145 (upto 10.08.2023)  Director
- Ms. Ratankanvar H. Gadhavicharan, :
Director
IAS (w.e.f 07.10.2023) :
-Ms, Neena Kumar (w.e.f. 19.03.2024) Women Director
-5hri Bhadresh Mehta .
Independent Director
(w.e.f 16.05.2022) o
- Shri Sanjay S Gavande ;
Chief Financial Officer
(upto 04.03.2024) :
- Ms, Tanaz Bacha (w.e.f. 04.03.2024) Chief Financial Officer
- Shri Sandip K. Shah Company Secretary
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Transaction with the related Parties
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars = _ Nature of Transaction 2024-25 | 2023-24
Government of Gujarat Interim Dividend Paid 7,507.94 23,045.20
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited Sale of Shares 1,00,000.00 -
Grant Received
Government of Gujarat /Receivable in pursuant 27.276.99 27.585.37
to Payment / payable of
Interest
Government of Gujarat Repayment of Loan 5,000.00 13,243.00
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Limited Interest Income 995.56 1,101.50
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Limited inter l:or;;; :: Deposit 1,55,433.17 46,011.18
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Limited | 'Mter c":;f;:“dﬂ“‘“'t 1,54,762.11 42,786.90
Consideration received in
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co. Ltd pursuant with Buyback of - 13,243.14
shares
Shri Bhadresh Mehta Director Sitting Fees 1.02 0.57
Ms. Neena Kumar Director Sitting Fees 0.59 -
h Remuneration including
Ms. Tanaz Bacha all allowance 86 el
ki ek Remuneration including
Mr. Sandip K Shah all allowance 17.49 14.46
7 Remuneration including
Mr. Sanjay S. Gavande a1l allowance - 14.93
Outstanding Balances (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Nature of Transactions As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Gujarat Industrial Power Co. Ltd, Investment 635.05 574.97
Gujarat Lease Financing Ltd. Investment 64.68 107.58
G5L (India) Limited Investment - -
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Investment 130.70 243.07
Gujarat State machine tools Company
E Investment - -
Limited
Gujarat State Trans Receivers Limited Investment - -
Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd. Investment 3,68,369.21 3,47,963.11
5 " il ’ Ll 4! ) -
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited desonunt 2.90,092.51 23,055.04
819.4 79,437,
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co. Ltd RN 2,82,819.45 2,75,237.40
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Co. Ltd. Investment L2759 4/43,533.12
Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Ltd. Investment 88,206.27 96,679.08
Government of Gujarat Grant Receivable 4,453.92 6,858.93
Gujarat State Financial Corporation Inter Corporate Deposit 9,694.78 9,023.71
Government of Gujarat Unsecured Loan 17,757.00 22,757.00
Government of Gujarat Other Liabilities 178.66 -
The remuneration to the key managerial personnel includes short term employment benefits and does not include
the provision made for the Eratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on actual basis for the company as a
whaole,
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[Note 33

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Segment Reporting

The main business of com pany Is investment activity, hence there are no separate reportable segments as per
Ind AS 108 on "Operating Segments",
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

MNotes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
Mote 36 Maturity Profile of assets and liabilities
(Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Partiatars Within 12 Beyond 12 Within 12 Beyond 12
Months Months Total manths Months (Mon- Total
(Current] | [Non-Current] [Current] | Current)
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 728.23| - 728.23 £9.87 - 69.87
Bank Balance other than (a) above 8,979.02 25.00] 9,004.02 8,986.75 25.00 9,011.75
Investments - 14,51,590.56 14,51,590.56 1,00,000.,00 14,87,397.37 15,87,397.37
Other Financial assets 0.85 1.69 2.54 2.93 0.00 2.93
Non-Financial Assets -
Current tax assets (Net) 1,746.08 0.00 1,746.08 2,193.06 (0.00) 2,193.06
Deferred tax Assets - - - - -
Property, Plant and Equipment 7.31 7.31 = 9.82 9.82
Other non -financial assets 2.35 0.00] 2.35 0.03 (0.00), 0.03
Non-current Asset Held for sale - - - - - -
Total Assets 11,456.54] 14,51,624.56| 14,63,081.08 1,11,252.62| 14.87,432.17| 15,98,684.83
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY g
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities -
Dehbt Securities - 2,00,000.00]  2,00,000.00] 1,00,000.00 2,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Bnrrnj.rffngs (Other than Debt 17,757.00 | 17,757.00 | | 22,757.00
Securities) I
Qther financial liabilities 201.70 {0.00) 201.70 23.05 - 23.05
Non-Financial Liabilities -
Provisions 0.63| 14.00 14.63] 12.03 - 12.03
Deferred Tax Liabilities - 28,130.40| 28,130.40 - 38,894.51 38,894.51
Other non-financial liabilities 153 (0.00) 1.53 2.94 - 2.94
Liabilities Associated with Non -
Current Assets held for sale ] & ] [ B B
Total Liabilities 17,960.86 2,28,144.40| 2,45,105.26] 1,00,038.02 2,38,894.51 3,61,689.53
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GUJARAT STATE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

38

Additional Regulatory Disclosures (Non IND AS):

(a)

Relationship and Transactions with struck off companies

The company has not entered into any transaction with Struck off companies under section 248 of Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, Further, there is no balance outstanding with struck off
companies.

(b)

Undisclosed Income

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(Such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

c)

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

{d)

Compliance with number of layers companies.

The company is in compliance with number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of Companies
Act read with the companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

(e)

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(f

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity[ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(g)

The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in
accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

(h)

There is no charge which are pending for satisfaction with registrar of companies beyond the statutory period.

(i)

There is no intangible assets under development.

()

The borrowing from the banks and Financial Institutions has been used for the specific purpose for which it was

taken at the balance sheet date.
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